
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk 

To:  All Members of the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Enquiries to: Peter Thompson
e-mail:              peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01706 924715
Date: Tuesday, 1st November 2016

Dear Councillor

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

You are requested to attend a meeting of the Communities, Regeneration 
and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held in the 
Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, Smith 
Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU on Wednesday, 9 November 2016 commencing 
at 6.15 pm.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and 
Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Membership 2016/17
Councillor Neil Butterworth
Councillor Susan Emmott
Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Daniel Meredith
Councillor Shaun O'Neill
Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Ann Stott JP
Councillor Shah Wazir
Councillor June West
Councillor Peter Winkler
Councillor Sameena Zaheer

Public Document Pack

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/
mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


Rochdale Borough Council

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 9th November 2016 at 6.15 pm

Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

A G E N D A

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 2

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Minutes 3 - 6

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
held 7th September 2016. 

3.  Work Programme 2016/17 7 - 13

4.  Rochdale Borough Council Homelessness Strategy 2016-2019 14 - 58

5.  Performance Monitoring of Registered Provider Partners 

Director of Neighbourhoods to report.

6.  Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 2 Performance Update 59 - 62

7.  GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool 63 - 75

Minutes of the meetings of the Scrutiny Pool held on 9th September 
and 14th October 2016, for information.



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 1



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.

Page 2



COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 7th September 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Stott (Vice Chair in the Chair); Councillors Susan Emmott, 
Malcolm, O’Neill, O’Rourke, Wazir, West, Winkler and Zaheer.

OFFICERS:  D. Bowler (Assistant Director - Place), M. Dalzell (Neighbourhoods 
Directorate and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Superintendent A. Mallen (Greater Manchester Police).

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Butterworth and Meredith.
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
18 Further to the Council’s Code of Conduct, Councillor Zaheer declared  a 
personal and prejudicial interest in respect of agenda item 4 (Rochdale Safer 
Communities Partnership - Performance Monitoring Report - 1st Quarter 2016/17) 
insofar as she was the Assistant to the Cabinet Member with responsibility for the 
Culture, Health and Wellbeing Portfolio. Councillor Zaheer left the room during the 
consideration of this item of business.

Further to the Council’s Code of Conduct, Councillor Zaheer declared a personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of agenda item 5 (RBH Performance Report), insofar as 
she had been appointed by the Council to the Rochdale Boroughwide Housing 
Representative Committee. Councillor Zaheer left the room during the consideration 
of this item of business.

MINUTES
19 DECIDED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held 13th 
July 2016 be approved as a correct record.

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17
20 The considered a report of the Assistant Director (Legal, Governance and 
Workforce) which presented the updated Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2016/17, including 
the Committee’s Action List.

The recommendations were put forward as Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 7 
requires Overview and Scrutiny Committees to set a work programme and to report it 
to the Council.

DECIDED – that (1) Work Programme 2016/17 as appended to the submitted 
report be noted;

(2) the actions list appended to the submitted report be noted.

ROCHDALE SAFER COMMUNITIES PARTNERSHIP - PERFORMANCE 
MONITORING REPORT - 1ST QUARTER 2016/17
21 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
regarding the performance of the Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership (RSCP) 
during the first quarter of 2016/17 (April – June). The Committee scrutinised the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Performance Management Bulletin which was attached to the report that provided 
Members with a detailed summary of how the RSCP was performing against specific 
targets.

The Safer Communities Partnership Plan identified approximately 40 targets 
which were achieved through the implementation of annual multi-agency 
action plans that were written for each of the specific strategic priorities.  

Each quarter the RSCP compiled a performance bulletin.  The bulletin 
examined both the performance in relation to targets and the actions 
implemented as part of the multi-agency action plans.  The performance 
bulletin was used by the RSCP to highlight areas of good practice and 
performance and also to understand under-performance so that corrective 
action can be identified and implemented.

The Partnership’s Bulletin highlighted seven strategic priorities as follows: to 
increase confidence and satisfaction; to reduce crime; to reduce the harm 
caused by drugs and alcohol; to prevent and tackle anti–social behaviour; to 
prevent offending (and re-offending) by children and young people; to prevent 
adult re-offending; to develop community cohesion. It was against these 
priorities that the Committee scrutinised the performance of the Partnership.

In considering the report Members sought clarification from officers and 
Superintendent Mallen, who was attending the meeting on behalf of Greater 
Manchester Police, on a number of pertinent issues including the 101 phone 
line, the future of various projects that were funded, or partially funded by the 
European Union in light of the outcome of the EU Referendum, the prevalence 
of police cameras in the Borough and the recruitment of additional police 
officers in the Borough.

A Member referred to previous reports which separated out the crime statistics 
of Heywood town centre from the Heywood North Ward (as the town centre is 
wholly located in the Heywood North Ward), as it was felt that the inclusion of 
the data gave a false impression of crime in that Ward.

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted;
            (2) that future performance monitoring reports of the Safer Communities 
Partnership be requested to separate out the crime statistics for Heywood town 
centre from the remainder of the Heywood North.

RBH PERFORMANCE REPORT
22 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods which 
provided Members with an update on the performance of Rochdale Boroughwide 
Housing (RBH) for quarters 3 and 4 in 2015/16 (October – March) in relation to the 
achievement of the aspirations, commitments and promises set out in the Council’s 
Service Level Agreement with RBH. Promises were initiatives or projects that RBH 
had committed to deliver. Commitments were described as pre-transfer service levels 
that RBH were required to maintain and aspirations were the things that RBH would 
like to do, but were not guaranteed to do so as there was no specific funding in its 
business plan and delivery could be adversely affected by issues such as the impact 
of the welfare reform agenda. The report also provided some additional key 
performance information and updated Members on the organisations mutualisation 
process, development programme and on how RBH was working in partnership with 
the Council, local agencies.

Page 4



In considering the report, the Committee sought clarification on the numbers of empty 
properties in RBH’s portfolio, noting that this had encouragingly fell from 
approximately 555 in 2014/15 to the current figure of around 260; the effects on 
tenants of the welfare reform agenda; the eligibility of tenants to apply for a mortgage 
to purchase their property; commending the number of apprentices being employed 
by RBH and the customer access contract that was due to expire on 30th September 
2016 which it was reported was the result of RBH intending to withdraw from a 
Service Level Agreement with the Council; and the proposal of RBH to employ their 
own occupational therapist rather than relying on services that were provided by the 
Council. The Assistant Director (Place) undertook to write to Members of the 
Committee confirming the situation regarding tenants who were eligible to apply for 
mortgages to purchase their properties from RBH.  

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted;
(2) the Assistant Director (Place) be requested to write to Members of 

the Committee regarding the eligibility for tenants who were eligible to apply 
for a mortgage to purchase their property from RBH. 

WINTER SERVICE POLICY 2016/17
23 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods that 
sought the views of the Committee on a review and proposed update to the Council’s 
existing Winter Service policy document, prior to its submission to the Cabinet.

The Committee was advised that Councils are recommended to review and update 
their highway related policy documents on a regular basis to make sure that they are 
fit for purpose and relevant. Also, as a result of improved technology in 2013 winter 
weather forecasts received by the Greater Manchester districts were now climate 
domain based and treatments could only be targeted to those domains where 
required; the treatment routes had been realigned accordingly. 

The Committee was advised that there had been no significant changes to the overall 
Policy other than at Section 10 of the Policy, which dealt with “Treatment Types and 
Priorities”.  The Council will undertake the following treatment types in any of the 
climatic domains across the borough: pre-treatment - ‘precautionary’ salting; post-
treatment - continuing salting following the formation of ice; clearance of ice and 
snow; and dealing with continuous severe conditions.

DECIDED – That the Committee supports the proposed revised Winter Service 
2016/17 policy document and recommend that the document be formally 
approved by the Cabinet.

VEHICLE ACCESS CROSSING POLICY 2016/17
24 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods that 
sought the views of Members on the Vehicle Crossing Access policy document which 
was attached at Appendix A to the report, and also on a proposal for the introduction 
of an administrative and supervision charge to the cost of the delivery of works in line 
with the Council’s annual standing charges for administration and supervision 
charges of £107.00.

The Director of neighbourhoods advised that members of the public were not allowed 
to drive over a footway or verge unless a vehicle crossing point had been authorised 
and constructed properly. A facility for crossing over a public footpath or verge, for a 
vehicle to get to a domestic property from the road, was known as a “dropped kerb”; 
“crossover”; or “vehicle crossing”. It would have to be built to specific standards, 
approved by the Council as the Local Highway Authority; and in some cases planning 

Page 5



permission would be needed. A Vehicle Crossing Access Policy would ensure that 
the Council regulated the provision of vehicle crossing facilities; that the location and 
use of vehicle access and dropped kerbs were safe and that they were made to 
appropriate standards.

The Director added that a Vehicle Crossing Access Policy should reduce the number 
of unauthorised crossings across the Borough and create a fairer and more equal 
arrangement for car and property owners. Such a Policy should limit the amount of 
pavement damage caused by vehicles using unauthorised vehicle crossings and 
reduce budget pressures for funding associated repairs.

DECIDED – That the Committee supports the proposed Vehicle Acess Crossing 
Policy and recommend that the document be formally approved by the Cabinet.

PARKING ENFORCEMENT POLICY
25 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of neighbourhoods which 
informed Members of the need to review the current Parking Enforcement Policy and 
propose alternative options for a new policy. In light of recently reported concerns 
that were raised by elected Members regarding Parking appeals, together with the 
fact that the existing Enforcement Policy was developed four years ago, it was 
considered an appropriate time to review and update this policy. A revised policy 
gave the opportunity to update contact details and reference points and allowed for 
an improved format which was designed to be more accessible.    

Members were informed that Part 6 of the Traffic Management Act 2004 (TMA 2004) 
introduced a number of changes in connection with traffic law and set the principles 
for a complete change in direction in respect of parking enforcement. One of the 
requirements was for local authorities to produce and publish a clear and transparent 
enforcement policy which sought to prevent any inconsistencies of approach towards 
enforcement.

Rochdale Council produced a parking enforcement policy to comply with the 
Secretary of State’s Statutory Guidance which was approved by Members on the 
29th May 2012. The policy was introduced to ensure fairness, transparency and 
consistency in dealing with informal challenges and appeals against penalty charge 
notices issued to vehicles parked in contravention of parking restrictions. Parking 
enforcement had a high profile among the public and a careful balance was needed 
to be taken between meeting the needs of local residents, business and visitors 
whilst still maintaining highway safety and reducing congestion. The enforcement 
policy outlined the Council’s fair and consistent approach to the appeals process 
whilst taking in to account its statutory responsibility to carry out effective parking 
enforcement.  An updated enforcement policy would, it was reported, continue to 
provide a greater understanding for the reasons behind Civil Parking Enforcement 
and result in a higher level of compliance.

DECIDED – That the Committee notes the report and the proposed changes to 
the policy, as detailed at paragraph 3.14, and recommends that the policy be 
approved and adopted by the Cabinet.

GMCA/AGMA SCRUTINY POOL
26 DECIDED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the GMCA/AGMA 
Scrutiny Pool held 12th August 2016 be noted. 

Page 6



Subject: Committee Work Programme 2016/17 Status:  Publication

Report to: Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny  Committee 

Date: 9th November 2016
 

Report of: Assistant Director (Legal, Governance, 
Workforce)
Author Email:   peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk  

Author: Peter Thompson 

Tel: 01706 924715

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To present the updated Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2016/17, including the Committee’s Action List.

2 Recommendations

2.1       That the Committee notes the attached Work Programme 2016/17; 

2.2     The actions list that is also appended to this report be noted.

Reason for recommendation

Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 7 requires Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
to set a work programme and to report it to the Council.

3 Background

3.1 The Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
was established by the Council at the meeting held on 19th May 2015, the principal role 
of the Committee being to bring together both the physical and skills aspects of 
economic regeneration, and the supporting work of services such as leisure, 
highways, housing, environmental services etc, that provide the opportunities for work 
and the improvement of life experiences for the Borough’s communities.

3.2 Areas of focus for the Committee include the scrutiny of partners or key contractors 
relevant to the remit of the Committee.

3.3 The work programme for the Committee is drawn up through consideration of the 
statutory roles of the Committee, including the ‘call-in’ or review of executive decisions 
made, budget and policy consultation, and review of service delivery, with scheduling 
reflecting the anticipated consideration of business to deliver these functions.  The 
Committee has options for developing its own agenda and can request further 
business to come forward.  

3.4 Previous entries on the Work Programme had related to a suggested joint meeting 
with the Audit and Governance Committee on Greater Manchester Devolution, and an 
item related to Council Mortgages.  The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
has identified ‘Greater Manchester Developments and Preparing Members for Devo 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


Manc’ as a key theme for that Committee in the current year, and the issue of Council 
Mortgages has been referred by the Strategic Housing Service to the Director of 
Resources for consideration in the first instance; as such these items have been 
withdrawn from the Work Programme at this time.

3.5 Officers will continue to work with the Committee Members in developing the work 
programme. 

Alternatives considered

None

4 Financial Implications

4.1 None

5  Legal Implications

5.1 The development of an Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme is a requirement of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules contained within the Council’s 
Constitution.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 None

7. Risk Assessment Implications 

7.1 There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising from this report

8. Equalities Impacts

8.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

8.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no significant equality/community issues arising from this report.

There are no background papers to this report
 

Page 8



APPENDIX 1

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Work Programme 2016/2017 

1. The Work Programme for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2016/2017 has 
been compiled mindful of the key scrutiny functions that are set out in the Local 
Government Act 2000 and subsequent legislation and as set out in the Council’s 
Constitution.  In brief, these are to hold the executive to account and to maintain 
an oversight of the delivery of Council services.  This is undertaken principally 
through the following means:-
 

 Scrutiny of Executive Decisions through the ‘Call-in’ process;
 The consideration of Budget and Policy Framework proposals for 

consultative purposes;
 The consideration of a range of performance monitoring/management 

data;
 The specific consideration of individual service issues as may be specified 

by the Committee. 

2. The Committee’s Work Programme has been prepared on the basis of known 
items at this time.  Scheduling of some business remains to be determined and 
this is reflected in the Work programme.  

3. The following table highlights issues where there is either an agreement or an 
anticipation that specific items may come forward.  Other issues will be brought 
forward as indicated above.

15th June 2016

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Performance Monitoring (4th Quarter 
2015/2016) – including:
 Rochdale Safer Communities 

Partnership 
 Rochdale Development Agency

Performance management and 
monitoring

Guidelines and Standards for 
Residential Development 
Supplementary Planning Document

For information

Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2015/2016)
 Neighbourhoods Directorate
 Economy Directorate 

(incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Directorate Plan 2016/17 – 2018/19
 Neighbourhoods Directorate
 Economy Directorate 

(incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Discretionary Crisis Fund – Six 
month update report

Performance management and 
monitoring

Boxing Day Floods Review of responses to a significant 

Page 9



13th July 2016

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work Programme 
for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Food and Feed Plan 2016/17 Performance management and monitoring
Performance Monitoring (1st Quarter 
2016/2017) – including:
 Street Lighting PFI Contract

Performance management and monitoring

Link4Life – six month update report Performance monitoring and management
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes

7th September 2016

Work Programme 2016/2017 Update 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Performance Monitoring (1st Quarter 
2016/17)
 Rochdale Safer Communities 

Partnership

Performance management and monitoring

Winter Service Policy 2016/17 Scrutiny of proposals
Vehicle Access Crossing Policy 
2016/17

Scrutiny of proposals

Parking Enforcement Policy Scrutiny of proposals
Rochdale Boroughwide Housing – six 
month update report

scrutinising performance

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes Minutes

9th November 2016

Work Programme 2016/2017 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Directorate Plan Update (1st Quarter 
2016/2017)
 Neighbourhoods Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating 
RDA)

Performance management and monitoring

Rochdale Borough Homelessness 
Strategy 2016 - 2019 

Committee item

Performance Monitoring of Registered 
Provider Partners

Annual Report - scrutinising performance

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool For information/discussion

7th December 2016 

Work Programme 2015/2016 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals 

incident
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes

Page 10



Directorate Plan Update (2nd Quarter 
2016/2017)
 Neigbourhoods Directorate 
 Economy Directorate 

(incorporating RDA)

Performance monitoring and management

Performance Monitoring (2nd Quarter 
2016/17) – including:
 Street Lighting PFI Contract
Rochdale Safer Communities 
Partnership

Performance management and monitoring

Rochdale Riverside - Programme 
Timescale

Committee item

Discretionary Crisis Fund – six month 
update report

Performance monitoring and management

Gambling Licensing Policy Consultation on statutory legislation
Licensing Policy Update Consultation on statutory legislation
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool For information/discussion

8th February 2017 

Work Programme Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Performance Monitoring (3rd Quarter 
2016/2017) – including:
 Street Lighting PFI Contract
 Rochdale Safer Communities 

Partnership

Performance management and monitoring

Link4Life – Six month update report
Rochdale Boroughwide Housing – Six 
month update report
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool

5th April 2017

Work Programme 2016/2017 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals 
Directorate Plan Update (3rd Quarter 
2016/2017):
 Neigbourhoods Directorate
 Economy Directorate 

(incorporating RDA)

Performance monitoring and management

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool

Other business to be scheduled

Riverside Development Informal meetings of members of this and of the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be 
convened as the project approaches key milestones or 
as directed by the Chairs of the two  Committee, in 
consultation with the Director of Economy.  

Renewable Energy The scope and scheduling of this item to be determined. 

Page 11



Page 12



APPENDIX 2
COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Actions List 

MINUTE NO/ISSUE. ACTION LEAD TIMESCALE OUTCOME
Rochdale Safer 
Communities 
Partnership

Statistical Surveys that are carried out at 
Ward level be no longer used in the 
compilation of these reports.
Future reports include specific statistical 
details relating to recorded instances of 
violent crime.

Mark Dalzell Tbc with future 
report submission

Food and Feed Plan Review of the Food  Plan, content and 
presentation  

Public Protection 
Manager

December 2016 Submitted on agenda

Street Lighting PFI 
Contract

Future reports to include details of the new 
complaints procedure.

The next Update report to include details of 
work that CLP and E.ON are undertaking, 
and/or intend to undertake, to address 
concerns that Members have raised in 
relation to the poor quality of work being 
carried out.

The Update report includes details of the 
sample size of surveys undertaken to gauge 
customer satisfaction with the service.

Street Lighting PFI 
Contract Manager

December 2016 December 2016 
meeting

Rochdale Safer 
Communities 
Partnership
(15th June 2016)

 Revision to format of future submission 
of performance reports 

 Impact of criminalisation of ‘legal highs’

Mark Dalzell Tbc with future 
report submission

Rochdale Riverside
(15th June 2016)

Submission of Programme Timescale John Searle September 2016 Meeting held on 7th 
September 2016

P
age 13



Subject: Rochdale Borough Council 
Homelessness Strategy 2016-2019

Status:  Publication

Report to: Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Environment

Date: Wednesday, 9 November 2016
 

Report of: Director of Neighbourhoods

Author Email:    ian.jolley@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Ian Jolley

Tel: Tel: 01706 923551

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 This report is to provide an update to elected members about the draft 
Homelessness Strategy that is currently available for consultation.

1.2 To invite elected members to contribute any views or observation in regard to the 
Strategy.

2 Recommendations

2.1       That elected members agree that the Council should consider and have due 
regard for the comments and contributions received as part of this consultation and 
should be reflected where appropriate in the Homelessness Strategy 2016-2019.

Reason for recommendation

2. The Strategy Refresh has been developed by a Homelessness Strategy 
Group under the guidance of the Joint Homelessness Board and reflects the efforts 
and contributions from a partnership approach that has included input from statutory, 
non-statutory and voluntary services. It identifies priorities and how the Council 
wishes to engage with the wider community to help prevent homelessness and 
support those at risk of homelessness across the Borough. 

3 Background

3.1.0 In 2012 the council undertook an in depth review of homelessness in the 
Borough. Following the review a new Homelessness Strategy was published in 2013  
that set out the key priorities for the borough over the following 3 years. Key themes 
included the establishment of a Homelessness Board that includes representation of  
key stakeholders and service providers led by the elected member responsible for 
housing issues. Key priorities of the current strategy include:-

 The homelessness Board and the Borough of Rochdale Homelessness 
Action and Information Network (BRHAIN) meeting quarterly to review 
strategy and respond to housing issues.

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



 a continued emphasis on homelessness prevention through a housing 
options approach

 encouraging services to work together to provide more holistic outcomes and 
gain better value for money.

3.1.1 In 2015 the Homelessness Strategy Board agreed to oversee a review of 
Homelessness within the Borough and to consult with partner agencies, elected 
members, stakeholders and the wider community. To use the outcome of the 
strategic review to set out a revised strategy that would identify key themes and 
actions for how the council will assist households in the borough at risk of 
homelessness for the next 3 years.

3.1.2 The Joint Board agreed that although the challenges that households at risk 
and those agencies and services that seek to support households face continue to be 
a high priority, that the new strategic review would be a refresh. The new strategy 
sets out how the council will help households at risk of homelessness over the next 3 
years. It aims to reflect the current and future challenges and the very fluid nature of 
potential change that may occur as a result of new legislation and contributory factors 
such as Public Sector Reform and the Welfare Reform agenda. The primary focus 
will continue to be to prevent people from becoming homeless and emphasises the 
need to continue to build a strong partnership approach across all services and 
agencies working towards common goals.

3.1.4 In August elected members agreed that the Council should undertake formal 
consultation and the draft strategy has been made available to all key stakeholders 
within the Borough, service users and the wider public.

3.1.5 Response to the draft Strategy has been positive and constructive and is a 
reflection of the decision by the Joint Board to include statutory, non-statutory and 
voluntary sector partners in the development and direction of the strategy. 
Contributions range from the recognition of some gaps in background information 
such as lack of reference to the impact that spare room subsidy has had upon 
tenants in social housing and the housing providers that have tried to support those 
effected and; suggestions to how the strategy can link more effectively with corporate 
aims to support and improve life chances of children.

3.1.6 Further to the contributions and views that have already been received, the 
strategy may need to reflect the rapidly changing environment in relation to potential 
changes in Homelessness legislation and arrangements for funding supported 
accommodation. 

Alternatives considered

3.2.0 The local authority has a statutory responsibility to make available a 
Homelessness Strategy.  In recent years many authorities have recognised that the 
pace of change that has occurred through such things as economic recession and 
welfare reform has often over taken their homelessness strategy. Although there is a 
statutory requirement to have published a Homelessness Strategy many Boroughs 
delay undertaking reviews pending the outcome of potential changes. For example, 
the Government has indicated that it may revise Homelessness legislation during g 
the life time of this parliament. Elected members could agree to delay consultation 
and subsequent publication to allow a strategic response to any new legislation. 

4 Financial Implications

4.1.0 There are few financial implications directly associated with the development 

Page 15



of the strategic document. The Financial implications associated with the strategy are 
those reflected within the strategy. For example, the council retains a commitment to 
support households at risk of homelessness, to provide statutory services including 
assessment, provision of interim and temporary accommodation and to discharge the 
housing duty. The strategy also makes reference to areas of potential demand and 
likely budget pressures such as legislative change and the statutory requirement to 
accommodate homeless 18-21yr olds who may lose any entitlement to housing 
benefit.  

4.1.2 Direct funding to help support partner organisations has been reduced over 
the last 3 years in line with proposals set out in the previous Homelessness Strategy. 
The current value of the contract that the Council has with RBH to provide core 
Homelessness services has been fixed for the duration of the contract pending a 
review in 2019. Elected members recognise the effective outcomes that agencies are 
able to contribute to the homelessness prevention agenda and have agreed to 
protect these services from any reductions in 2017/18.

4.1.3 Public Health have made a significant contribution to funding that supports 
some of the Councils partner organisations and this is reflected in the opportunities 
that they provide that supports a more holistic approach to prevention and 
sustainment. The table below shows the headline financial breakdown for 
homelessness and prevention services. This does not include services 
commissioned directly through Public Health or Adult Care services.

Partnership funding (not inc. RBH contract)
2013 2016

Strategic Housing 
Services

431,400.00 147,800.00

Public Health Nil 150,000.00
Total 431,400.00 297,800.00

In addition to the above Public Health are also funding, Debt and Advice through 
CAB contract of £50,000 and contributing to RBH Homelessness contract of 
£45,000.00 this year. 

4.1.4 The strategy also sets out the council’s commitment to continue to support an 
inclusive approach to supporting households at risk of homelessness through 
partnership arrangements and that sufficient resources are made available to support 
the strategic aim to prevent homelessness in the Borough.

4.1.5 The government confirmed in 2015 that it would continue to provide the 
council with an annual Homelessness Prevention grant of £133,000 each year for the 
lifetime of this Parliament. This is included within the annual yearly settlement as part 
of Core Spending Power. 

4.1.6 There is a potential financial liability in the event of the Council facing any 
statutory appeal or legal action with regards a housing duty. The council decision 
could be challenged on the grounds that it has not ‘published’ and up to date 
Homelessness strategy which may result in some form of penalty in the event of legal 
intervention.   

5  Legal Implications

Page 16



5.1 As above, the requirement for local authorities to publish a Homelessness 
Strategy is set out in Section 1(3) Housing Act 2002; the duty for the local authority to 
regularly review and update a Homelessness strategy is set out in Section 1(4).

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no significant personnel implications

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1 The strategy supports the delivery of key corporate priorities set out in the 
Corporate Plan 2015- 2106. These include
 Fewer children will live in temporary accommodation
 More people will be supported so they don’t become homeless
 Fewer vulnerable adults will be neglected or harmed through abuse
 More families will be supported by multi agency teams working together

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

18.1 The strategy refresh recognises the continued demand for services from 
households at risk of homelessness and has identified local trends and future 
challenges. It consolidates and commits the council to continuing to support and 
enable the delivery of a range of services, activities and opportunities that can meet 
current demand and help mitigate future challenge. It is also specifically ambitious in 
areas where the council has a corporate desire to improve such as in the support for 
care leavers. 

8.2 The review recognises that while the strategic aims will continue to be 
focused upon homelessness prevention and the contribution to corporate aims, it 
should also be recognised that priorities within the strategy and how those aims are 
achieved may change in response to local conditions. 

8.3 Successful delivery of the strategy requires continued support from statutory 
and non-statutory services, stakeholders and representatives of the wider 
community. With demands increasing and resources continuing to be cut year on 
year, there is a risk that delivery and quality of outcomes will be compromised. 

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

The following equality/community issues arise from the issues raised in this report as 
set out below: 

The majority of household’s at risk of homelessness comes from the most deprived 
wards.

That all household types can be at risk of homelessness

Page 17



Recent and potential future changes such as the government’s welfare reform are 
likely to place particular groups at higher risk of homelessness or will be less able to 
resolve housing issues. This includes 

 people aged 18-21yrs without adequate support and not in employment.
 people at risk of sleeping rough
 single people on welfare under 35yrs

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Appendix 1 Draft Homelessness Strategy

Appendix 2 Draft Delivery Plan

Attached

Attached

Page 18



1

Rochdale Borough Council Homelessness Strategy DRAFT

Intro
This strategy update represents Rochdale Borough Councils commitment to continue to empower 
and support vulnerable people in the community to prevent homelessness. Preventing 
Homelessness is a key priority and recognises that having a safe and secure home is a cornerstone 
requirement for people to be part of, to contribute to and flourish in the Borough. While 
Homelessness Prevention is the key outcome, the strategic theme is one of Partnership. 

The strong partnerships that deliver current outcomes will need to be developed and strengthened 
to help us to maximise the potential use of resources and while services within the Council are 
beginning to work far more closely, this needs to be extended across all partners. The review has 
revealed high levels of experience and expertise, many examples of innovative approaches and 
beacons of success enabling people to achieve good outcomes but still many cases of single agencies 
trying to deliver holistic approaches. Over the next 3 years the Homelessness Strategy will seek to 
build upon the shared principles of homelessness prevention and housing sustainability to create a 
more joined up and seamless delivery of appropriate support. 

The Aim of Rochdale’s Homelessness Strategy is to prevent homelessness and to provide 
accommodation, advice, support and assistance to enable people to live sustainable lifestyles.    

The Strategy will describe through a thematic Delivery plan how we will:
 

 Provide timely interventions for people at risk of homelessness
 Provide pathways to short term and long term accommodation for those at risk of 

homelessness
 Contribute  to the improvement of the health and wellbeing of people at risk of 

homelessness
 Prevent Rough Sleeping 

As part of the Strategy we will support the need to provide: 

 Good housing options services that are well informed and accessible
 Access to short term and supported accommodation to enable people to address issues and 

be better placed to identify longer term housing solutions.
 Support people to Move on and sustain their housing. 

Under the Current Strategy there are a number of key areas that we need to continue to work 
towards and retain: 

 Prevention
 Pathways to sustainable housing for young people
 Move On 
 Better  joined up working

Since 2010 the challenge for Rochdale has been to be able to continue to meet the needs of people 
at risk of homelessness and to enable and support people towards more independent living against 
diminishing public sector funding and a challenging economic environment.

Page 19



2

Over the last 3 years significant progress has been made in all areas – some more effective than 
others. Service providers have been successful in continuing to innovate and to promote new and 
more effective ways of providing people with the type of support that they need in order to achieve 
lasting changes in their lives.

The strategy also recognises the role and opportunity to align Housing and Homelessness strategies 
with the broader Council aims to promote a prevention culture that will see a greater emphasis on 
engaging with the wider community to improve access to more timely support; earlier interventions 
and, early support.

Just as improving the health and wellbeing and economic prosperity for citizens of the borough is 
everyone’s business, preventing homeless is of equal importance. Without a settled environment, 
achieving good health and wellbeing and being able to contribute to the community either through 
work or volunteering or just being a good neighbour is not possible. This strategy refresh goes hand 
in hand with and takes a lead from the Councils wider Prevention and Wellbeing Strategy, the 
Mental Health Strategy and Economic Development for the Borough.

1. Strategic Review
The Strategic review has been overseen by the Homelessness Strategy Board that has representation 
from elected members and key strategic partners and stakeholders. The Board meets jointly 4 times 
a year with the Borough of Rochdale Homelessness Action and Information Network (BRHAIN). 
BRHAIN is the main body that brings together third sector, voluntary and statutory services, and 
stakeholders with a shared interest in resolving and preventing homelessness. Stakeholders and 
providers were invited to be part of a Strategy Group that has helped to undertake the review and 
form the final strategy on behalf of the Council. A key part of the review has been to identify and 
consult upon current and future issues and in 2015 the Group undertook a Homelessness Survey, 
and this strategy has been informed and influenced in part by the information that the Strategy 
group gathered. 

The Survey asked contributors to recognise barriers to enabling prevention and sustaining housing; 
how housing and homelessness issues impact upon people’s health and wellbeing and how agencies 
can contribute to improving outcomes. It also recognised how a more joined up approach could 
contribute to better outcomes and better use of resources. As well as recognising some inspirational 
and excellent work being undertaken that can help share and inform future service development, it 
also recognised some common themes and common barriers to enabling people to achieve 
successful outcomes.

All ideas and every issue raised could not be included in the development of the Delivery Plan that 
will drive the future direction of the Councils strategic aims, but common themes around better 
partnership working, stronger strategic direction, practical measures to help households at risk and 
to create a more collaborative approach to assisting excluded households are included.   

2. Homelessness
Since the last Strategic Review in 2012, demand for assistance has increased and numbers of 
contacts to statutory services has increased from just fewer than 5,000 in 2013/14 to nearly 16,000 
in 2015/16. Although there has been an increase in telephone inquiries over the last two years, 
somewhere in the region of 1,500 households have been seen via appointments or drop in services.  
Similarly there has been an upward trend in the number of homelessness assessments reaching their 
full term although the trend across Greater Manchester (GM) has seen a steady increase in the 
number of Priority Households, in the Borough this has been static in the region of 300 households 
in each of the last 2 years.  

Page 20



3

The table below shows number of priority household by quarter
Year Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Total
2014/15 93 78 68 63 302
2015/16 66 67 63 89 285

Going hand in hand with the increased numbers of inquiries has been the continued demand and 
high occupancy rates of most types of supported and temporary accommodation and a waiting list 
for households seeking support via the Adult Care commissioned floating support services.

Move on for households that have to use temporary and supported accommodation has become 
more difficult and the average period of time in accommodation at the Homeless Families Unit and 
Single Household Unit has increased from 12.5 weeks in 2014 to 14.5 weeks in 2016. For individuals 
using specialist housing services such as Stepping Stone Projects, rehousing is taking far longer. 

 Although supply has generally been able to cope with demand there continues to be intermittent 
use of B&B type accommodation.  However, numbers of households with children having to use 
temporary accommodation has remained constant although this is partially due to an increase in 
refugee households over the last 2 years.  The Council are determined to do all it can to prevent 
households with children from being placed in B&B type accommodation. The Council does not use 
B&B accommodation to house unaccompanied children. The table below shows number of children 
accommodated over the last 2 years. 

2014-2015 2015-2016
Number of children in B&B* 15 12
Number of children in Temp 
Accommodation 220 440

*NB Most households with children placed out of hours. 

3. Causes of Homelessness
The main causes of homelessness amongst priority households is Domestic Abuse, termination of 
Assured Shorthold Tenancy (AST) and Refugee households that have come to the Borough as part of 
the Asylum Dispersal programme.  However, the greatest proportion of households that present for 
advice and assistance are single white males aged between 25 -45 years. 

During the last review we identified that the general demography of households seeking advice and 
assistance had become much broader with a higher number of owner occupiers and households that 
are in employment or partial benefit seeking help. This trend has continued although numbers at risk 
due to mortgage default have reduced slightly. The continued funding of a bespoke service through 
the Councils partnership with CAB has been a key tool in helping households at risk of mortgage 
default. As well as being able to support households in liaising with the Courts and negotiating with 
lenders, a common aspect with these households are that they have multiple debts and have often 
entered into poorly advised or higher risk financial agreements.

Although there has been an increase in numbers  of households becoming at risk of homelessness 
that are in paid employment or in receipt of partial benefit, the overwhelming majority of 
households seeking advice and support are fully reliant upon welfare benefits. While the secondary 
aim of most services and agencies is to enable people to achieve sustainable outcomes that includes 
help to get into work, access to and problems with benefit payments and the compounding effects 
of personal debt are significant factors in many cases. For example, in the last quarter of 2016 over 

Page 21



4

100 individuals at risk of homelessness in Middleton sought advice and support from Brentwood 
primarily around debt and benefit issues. 

4. Prevention
Prevention has been the key priority for all services and partner agencies and we have continued to 
achieve year on year improvements in the number of households that are either prevented from 
becoming homeless or are helped to find somewhere to live before they become homeless. In the 
last full year +1700 households prevented from becoming homeless was reported to Department of 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) and Rochdale continues to be in the top half of best 
performing Boroughs across Greater Manchester (GM). Much of this has been enabled through a 
continued commitment to partnership working across a number of third sector agencies and 
partners some of which are commissioned and many that have enhanced their services by bringing 
in additional funding from elsewhere. The colocation of Homelessness services within Rochdale 
Boroughwide Housing has also added to the numbers supported through housing options and 
prevention work. The Council acknowledges that without the support of partners across the 
Borough, that far fewer households would be able to achieve successful prevention outcomes. 

Prevention is effective when it is timely and where possible can be aligned to individual issues and in 
the past it has often been due to a flexible and pragmatic approach. While longer term aims will 
always be to enable a household to achieve resilience and independence, there are times when 
direct action is what is required. In the past, services were able to make use of DCLG Homelessness 
Prevention Grant and although this is still nominally part of the total government funding that the 
Council receives, it is subsumed within current costs that help pay for the delivery of the 
Homelessness service on behalf of the Council by Rochdale Boroughwide Housing. One of the key 
aims of the Delivery plan will be for partner agencies under the BRHAIN umbrella agencies to seek to 
acquire a Prevention fund that would be available for one off payments that can prevent an 
immediate or longer term threat of homelessness. 

Further to this, previously Homelessness services and agencies were able to prevent immediate 
homelessness or loss of temporary accommodation through a more flexible arrangement to provide 
transfers between services or to share support delivery. This was particularly effective when trying 
to establish a more stable environment for chaotic individuals. The delivery plan will seek to re-
establish these principles initially through the development of a Case managed approach based upon 
shared principles although, in the future, the Council would seek to embed partnership agreements 
amongst any services commissioned. The strategy will promote the idea of services working in 
partnership that will enable service users to retain some continuity with support workers and that 
where agencies are working together to identify a lead partner.

The Council will seek to continue to provide or facilitate support for all households at risk of 
homelessness and in particular to ensure that there is sufficient accommodation available to all 
priority households that are unable to find their own solution including households experiencing 
domestic abuse, households with children, young people previously cared for and those at risk as a 
result of mortgage default.  However, the Council recognises that resolving homelessness and 
supporting people to find suitable housing is vital for the economic and community wellbeing of the 
Borough. 

5. Rough Sleeping
Partners have worked together to try and maintain the Councils commitment to No Second Night 
Out (NSNO) and to ensure that no one is at risk of sleeping rough particularly through periods of 
severe weather. In 2015 providers and partner agencies agreed to develop a new and more 

Page 22



5

formalised approach to supporting people at risk of sleeping rough and established a Cold Weather 
Protocol that has been adopted by service representatives of the Borough of Rochdale 
Homelessness Action and Information Network (BRHAIN). The number of people recorded as 
sleeping rough spiked significantly in November 2014 when we reported 17 to DCLG. As a result we 
undertook a Rough Sleeper headcount across the Borough in November 2015. Teams of volunteers 
visited sites across Rochdale, Heywood and Middleton and recorded only 2 individuals sleeping 
rough which is the lowest figure since 2003. While this is good news and indication that a more 
joined up approach has improved the situation, there continues to be a perception that there is an 
underlying issue and the evidence from partners gathered as part of the review is that there 
continues to be a number of people at high risk of sleeping rough and in transient and insecure 
arrangements. Further to this, successful attempts to support and resettle people within this cohort 
is often undone by other people and associates ‘moving in’ or destabilising secure tenancies, a term 
commonly referred to as Tenancy attrition or Tenancy sabotage. 

Partners will continue to address and prioritise Rough Sleeping and in particular the wider issues 
relating to perceptions and Tenancy attrition. The Council will seek to continue to facilitate a 
partnership approach and where possible assertive outreach.  A proposed action as part of the 
Delivery plan will be to seek to improve the BRHAIN website or to link it with any Borough wide 
initiative based upon similar models being established in other areas. This could include the 
development of a Community Charter that allows a broad range of agencies including statutory, 
voluntary, business, housing and community based to agree to work towards promoting shared 
solutions to resolving and actions relating to rough sleeping and associated issues. 

6. Housing and Move On
Access to housing and move on for those in supported accommodation has continued to be an issue 
particularly for those with poor housing records and those that are excluded by social landlords. The 
introduction of welfare reform has exasperated this in a number of cases with some households 
building up rent arrears due to reduced HB or in some cases benefit sanctions. Nearly all social 
landlords have introduced ‘rent in advance’ and all continue to operate exclusions for households 
with previously unaddressed rent arrears and costs, in some cases going back years. In addition, 
social landlords are now providing pre-tenancy assessment with prospective tenants to look at 
whether the household will be able to afford the property and to work them on developing personal 
financial strategies to help them sustain their housing. Providers are very reluctant to offer tenancies 
for any household they consider cannot afford to sustain. 

Recent research shared across the Housing partnership has already recognised that there are 
proportionality higher numbers of families relying upon benefit in the Private Rented Sector (PRS) in 
the Borough compared to similar boroughs. While this will be partially due to demand for 
households wishing to live within a number of key neighbourhoods such as central Rochdale, 
Milkstone and Deeplish, it may also be due to barriers to social housing or a miss-match in 
availability and demand. However, in the last 6 months, demand for support from the councils rent 
guarantee scheme operated by the Bond Board has been at an all-time high. To help meet demand 
and to continue to grow choice and opportunity in the PRS, the Bond Board are now working with 
Rochdale Housing Initiative (RHI) and Strategic Housing Services (SHS) to help bring empty properties 
back into use. This is proving to be particularly valuable when seeking housing options for 
households that need specific property types or locations that cannot be met by social landlords. 

While it is clear that all social landlords across the Borough have introduced new ways of trying to 
support households that are vulnerable to losing their homes and to assist them to take up 
opportunities to build personal resilience and improve health and wellbeing, there is still often a 
barrier to social housing for some. Some Social landlords will cite a lack of support from statutory 

Page 23



6

and other services and, while there has been a significant improvement in involvement and 
recognition of how housing and providers and services should work, there is still some distance to go 
to give landlords the confidence to house higher risk households. Hence, the refresh recognises this 
need and will promote the development of a Case managed approach with services and partner 
agencies agreeing to a common way of working and sharing the lead role in delivering multi-agency 
responses. For many the ‘customer journey’ is still one where a household may pass from one 
service to another and from one ‘key worker’ to another. Households need consistency and those 
housing them need responsive partners. 

Further to this Social landlords are seeking to be proactive and support the Council in developing 
housing solutions for young people and particularly around engaging in the health and wellbeing 
agenda. This is leading to a much better joined up approach between statutory services, council 
services and housing providers and we will hope that this increased partnership working will enable 
more vulnerable households to find housing solutions in the social housing sector. 

7. Young People 
Since the last Strategic review and the implementation of a joint protocol between Children’s Social 
Care (CSC) and Strategic Housing Services, there are much better and safer pathways for any young 
person (16/17yr old) at risk of homeless. However the prospects for young people that are not able 
to remain at home or have no family or friends to support them has continued to be challenging. 

In 2014 we recognised that housing options for cared for children were not good enough and SHS 
has been working with CSC under the guidance and leadership of the Corporate Parenting Board to 
improve the offer. We are able to promote a new sharers scheme and by extending the Trainer flats 
opportunity to young people that want to share. In addition, we are in the process of developing 
some creative and exciting opportunities to link housing to vocational training and employment. 
However, we want to go further and following a Peer assessment in 2015 we are proposing to invite 
all social landlords to sign up to the principles of becoming Corporate Parent and recognise that we 
all have a responsibility to do our best to support young people that have been in care. As part of the 
Councils commitment we will review how we choose to interpret intentionality when considering 
previously cared for young people. We will consult on a proposal to adopt the good practice being 
operated elsewhere that recognises that previously cared for young people that become homeless 
should not be excluded from further help and housing. We will need the support from all social 
landlords and services to help make this a reality in the Borough.   

The Council is also working in partnership with a number of Boroughs and DePaul UK to provide an 
intensive housing and employment support service for over 40 young people that are excluded from 
existing housing and not in Employment Education or Training. This is being directly funded through 
the Social Investment Model at no financial risk to the Council. It has allowed DePaul UK the 
freedom to work intensively and to offer bespoke support that can best match the individual needs 
and issues of each young person and we will hope to benefit from the ongoing learning from this 
project that can be applied to the wider young community. This project has been in operation since 
January 2015 and 31 young people are currently in sustained accommodation and 3 have completed 
more than 13 weeks in fulltime employment.  

8. Withdrawal of Housing Benefit 18-21yr olds
One of the biggest challenges we may face as a Borough is the potential impact of the withdrawal of 
housing benefit entitlement for 18-21yr olds. 

Page 24



7

In the 12 months 2015-2016, the Homelessness Service recorded 110 18-21yr olds seeking advice 
and assistance. A snapshot taken as part of the strategic review revealed that 15 single young people 
between the age 18-21 were in some form of supported accommodation, (11male, 4female). A 
further 9 were living in shared accommodation in the PRS as part of the Bond Boards Sharers 
scheme, (4 male, 5 female). Brief analysis of the 15 young people showed that 9 had no actual or 
effective family support; several had experienced abuse; 6 had offending history.  

As part of the Chancellors welfare reform programme, the right to Housing Benefit for all 18-21yr 
olds will be withdrawn in April 2017. While it is yet to be announced whether the Government will 
allow any exemptions to this new rule, the Council should be aware that there may be some 
financial impact upon the council and partners in providing emergency accommodation. What is 
most likely is that exemptions may apply to schemes that link housing provision with training and 
vocational support and the Delivery plan recognises the need for us to work with all potential 
providers to develop suitable housing solutions for 18-21yr olds that are unable to remain at home 
or have no viable home to go to. 

A priority action for the Delivery Plan will be to engage with all partners to look at how we can work 
together to try and find suitable resolutions to this issue. 

9. Local Housing Allowance (LHA) and Single Room Rate
All single people under the age of 35yrs that are on benefit and living in the private rented sector 
(PRS)are affected by welfare reform and are only entitled to the single room rate Housing Benefit 
allowance – somewhere in the region of £56p/wk. The weekly rental cost of a one bedroomed flat 
across the Borough is between £80-110p/wk. The latest round of reform will extend this to all 
tenures including social housing.  As part of our previous response the council supported the Bond 
Board to develop a Sharers Option in the Private Rented Sector. This has proven to be successful but 
labour intensive to promote and maintain. The project which was part funded by the Council and 
part funded by outside grants provides both housing and support with an emphasis in helping 
people to get into employment and to lift them out of the Local Housing Allowance constraints. 

Further to this, even for young people in employment, housing costs and costs of living is making it 
increasingly difficult to afford for those on modest to low incomes and we all need to work together 
to create realistic and sustainable options for people that will struggle. In particular we need to 
consider how services, agencies and housing providers can work together to provide opportunities 
and support, to develop a sharers option across social housing providers and where possible to seek 
to link housing opportunities to training and employment.  

10. Homelessness  Health and wellbeing
While motivating and helping people to access training and vocational opportunities is a key aim in 
enabling people to improve their wellbeing and develop personal resilience, a significant proportion 
of households coming into contact with homelessness services are not at a level where they can 
realistically take up such opportunities. In some circumstances there are more practical barriers such 
as single parents with young children and access to suitable child care.  Evidence from partners 
recognised that households with complex dependencies need a greater amount of intervention and 
support to get them to a level where by they can get involved. Services have responded to this 
challenge through a diversity of opportunities. Coffee and cake mornings to encourage people to 
attend training sessions – Bond Board; Creative Arts projects – Petrus and Gabriel Court; Health 
Trainers and Outward Bound weekends – Sanctuary Trust; Health Walks- Brentwood are a few of the 
activities that have been introduced to engage people and the Life Coach project that has been 

Page 25



8

funded through Public Health England has proved that a bespoke and targeted support can help 
even the most entrenched individual to achieve. 

Key points in housing sustainment and risk of homelessness include issues around social isolation 
and this is an increasingly recognised issue relating to the health and wellbeing of all sectors of the 
community. For homeless households this is often compounded by a lack of wholesome networks 
and while some disadvantaged or vulnerable people can often find mutual support and strength 
together, it can often have a detrimental effect. The opportunity and ability for providers to engage 
people in social, creative and confidence building activities is an essential element towards 
sustainable outcomes and a better community engagement. It is essential that partners continue to 
work together to share opportunities, pool resources if possible and to record outcomes and future 
commissioning should include space within  contracts to allow for this type of development. 

However, there is further work to be done. Pathways into statutory services can still be difficult and 
access to timely interventions particularly around mental health is still reported as being a significant 
barrier. The issue of individuals considered having a dual diagnosis, that is mental health issues and 
issues usually relating to drug or alcohol misuse, being unable to access health services is seen as a 
significant barrier by homelessness service providers. Demands upon health services appear to have 
resulted in high thresholds with support only becoming available when at crisis point.  As a result, 
Homelessness services have been proactive in informing the development of the locality plan and 
the Mental Health Strategy for the Borough and support the proposals that will help people get 
support at an earlier point. 

Further to this, the chaotic and transient lifestyles of some of our people with complex 
dependencies mean that they struggle to engage properly with primary healthcare services. As well 
as mitigating against timely response to health issues and gaining access to specialist health services, 
it has led to contributing to the number of frequent flyers attending local Urgent care and A&E type 
services. This issue has been recognised across CCG and Public health partners and local 
homelessness services. In late 2014, Rochdale in partnership with Bolton Council and Wigan Council 
were successful in acquiring some modest funding from DCLG to provide targeted support for 
Frequent Flyers. This small team of outreach workers has been able to work in partnership with the 
already highly effective CCG service that has been targeting frequent flyers with alcohol issues. Both 
services have worked in partnership and the established link between Health and Housing services 
has proven to be invaluable in being able to share information and deliver packages of support. 

The evidence and good practice learned across the Homelessness partnership about supporting 
people to acquire healthier lifestyles and the experience of working with colleagues from Health is 
being recognised within the updated Delivery plan. As well as encouraging and supporting front line 
workers to become trained and confident in delivering Brief Interventions and the concept of 
Making Every Contact Count, services recognise the need to address underlying issues of which 
homelessness is a symptom.  In order to properly assist people and particularly those at greater risk 
of homelessness or repeat homelessness due to lifestyle issues, partners have agreed that we need a 
better understanding both in general terms and individual terms. Partners will agree to undertake a 
Survey to measure the current health issues of our homeless cohort and we will share this 
information across colleagues and commissioners. In order to help individuals better understand 
their personal issues and challenges we aim to introduce a common set of health and wellbeing 
indicators as part of any assessment and referral processes. Further to this we intend to review 
existing information sharing protocols across the Homelessness partnership and as part of the wider 
joined up work with housing providers and health we will seek to improve information sharing 
between health and housing partners. 

Page 26



9

In 2011 a great deal of work was done to introduce a GM Hospital Discharge Protocol between 
Hospital services and Homelessness services to end the common practice of people being discharged 
directly to Homelessness advice services. This has worked well until relatively recent times. As part 
of the evaluation of the Frequent Flyers project, Salford University has been asked to review the 
Hospital Discharge protocol across GM. Feedback has not been encouraging with some districts 
including Rochdale reporting significant slippage. As part of the Delivery plan, we will seek to re-
establish this link either separately or as part of any wider information sharing protocol. 

11. Families
Improved partnership working between Children’s Services and Housing Providers including 
homelessness services has contributed to a reduction in complex families accessing statutory 
homelessness services. Since the last strategic review there has been some significant developments 
particularly in the approach that the Council and other services have taken towards supporting 
family households where there are complex dependencies. The development of the MASS and Early 
Help services, the additional resource of Stronger Families and the lessons that are being learnt from 
the Kirkholt Pilot project has shown the longer term benefit of a much more integrated and cross 
service approach to delivering a whole family approach. The Delivery plan recognises the need to 
continue to promote and develop the whole family approach to supporting households at risk of 
homelessness. Where resources allow, services working with families and young mothers would 
seek to introduce the CAF as a standard model although we recognise that existing resources may 
make this difficult to achieve. 

The council has continued to recognise the need to help to support young parents particularly those 
from an unsettled background. The council works in partnership with Barnardo’s to provide both an 
accommodation based service and support for young families as they move on into the community. 
Many of the issues faced by young parents are the same as those faced by all young people that are 
seeking to live independently in the community, particularly around income and sustaining a home 
but these are often compounded by not having the benefit of strong and supportive networks. The 
need for services to help enable people to develop personal resilience and to acquire life skills and 
confidence needs to go hand in hand with seeking out and developing opportunities in the 
communities in which people are living. This can help create both social and supportive networks. 

The approach and type of work done to assist families at risk of homelessness can be similarly 
applied to single people with complex dependencies at risk of homelessness. 

12. Complex Dependences 
Services share commitment and ambition in assisting single people with complex dependencies and 
we recognise that there are people whose lifestyle and behaviours are entrenched and struggle to 
access and maintain any housing. It will and does take time and effort to encourage and motivate 
individuals to change lifestyles and to address the significant personal challenges that they face. 
Often exasperated by mental and physical ill health, drug and alcohol issues and anti-social 
behaviours, we need to establish suitable housing options to assist them away from rough sleeping 
and the transient lifestyles that impact upon the wider community. The Delivery plan recognises that 
by working across partners we should seek to adopt a Housing First approach and provide greater 
support to services that are already working with individuals with complex dependencies. We 
recognise that this cannot be achieved by seeking additional financial resources, but by a more 
shared and joined up approach. We will introduce a Housing First approach and seek to build upon 
the models being delivered across the borough by a number of the providers. Individuals will be 
cased managed by the most appropriate service provider with the support of other agencies through 
a Multi-Agency Risk Management model. 

Page 27



10

Further to this partners recognised that a key barrier for many homeless households and those at 
risk of homelessness is social isolation. Homeless households and particularly single people are often 
socially isolated. Often estranged from or without family and social networks, usually unemployed 
and very often experiencing depression or similar mental ill health, they  find it difficult to establish 
relationships that will help them flourish and recover. Very often the social networks that they do 
develop or enter into can be counterproductive and more likely to lead to a more entrenched 
situation. Partners are committed to continue to provide opportunities to encourage meaningful 
activity and involvement. As part of the Delivery plan we want to explore the opportunity to seek 
wider support by making better use of community champions, pooling social and creative activities 
and harnessing the expression of support that we have received from faith groups. 

13. Ex service personnel and veterans
Although ex-services personnel and service veterans are not overly represented in numbers that 
seek assistance, the strategy recognises that they may need additional assistance and support. 
Rochdale Council has agreed to prioritise ex-service personnel and support them through existing 
partnership arrangements with Royal British Legion, SSAFA and White Ensign Society.   

14. Domestic Abuse
Domestic Abuse (DA) continues to be one of the main reasons for households being assessed as 
statutorily homeless and preventing domestic abuse and supporting victims of abuse is a primary 
priority for the Council. The Council is part of a partnership of agencies across the whole of the 
Borough including, Police and Victim Support.  Housing and Homelessness services are represented 
as part of the Domestic Abuse Working Group and the group is currently reviewing provision of 
services and identifying priorities for commissioners. Key developments over the last two years has 
been the piloting of projects aimed at working with perpetrators; the inclusion of Homelessness 
services as part of the MASS to be part of a multi-agency response for children affected by DA; and 
Homelessness joining with colleagues from across the Borough to become part of STRIVE – an 
assertive approach to provide early interventions to households experiencing DA. Further to this, the 
Council has commissioned Women’s Housing Action Group to continue to provide Refuge support 
but the service has also developed support for male victims of DA and support for households 
experiencing DA in the community. 

The review of services and support for households experiencing DA will allow commissioners to join 
up funding streams and services and to achieve a more joined up approach aimed at both preventing 
DA and supporting people at risk of DA. It recognises that new and creative ways of working need to 
include early interventions and strategies and opportunities to bring about behaviour change. 
Housing providers and our partner social housing providers will continue to have a key role in 
identifying people experiencing DA and facilitating multi agency responses. The review also 
recognises that there are still gaps within the support and provision for households and over the 
coming months the Homelessness service will bring on stream some additional accommodation to 
help accommodate households that are unable to access Refuge services.   

15. Welfare Reform, austerity and the government programme to make work pay.
The introduction the coalition Governments Welfare Reform programme coincided with an increase 
in numbers of households making inquiries to statutory homelessness services and while this cannot 
account for all increased demand, it would suggest that it has contributed to an increased number of 
households becoming at risk.

Page 28



11

Further reforms including those already previously referred to above are likely to impact upon 
households on low incomes and particularly those that rely on welfare or do not have sufficient 
resilience and networks. This includes  

 The lowering of the of benefit cap
 Introduction of Single room rate for under 35yrs in all rented accommodation
 Withdrawal of HB element of UC for 18-21yr olds

To compound the situation, the government has not yet established whether or what exemptions 
may be applied to for people using supported accommodation. It is likely that the government will 
agree to allow exemptions for some types of supported accommodation but that these will be time 
limited and linked to training, education and vocational opportunities.   

Further to this the government have introduced a number of measures as part of their housing 
programme that in the short to medium term are likely to impact adversely upon vulnerable 
households and those most at risk of becoming homeless. These include

 1% reduction in social housing rents over the next 4 years – this equates to a significant loss 
of income equivalent to approximately 8% for each housing provider. This will make social 
landlords more risk averse and reluctant to accept people with previous poor rent histories 
or are likely to struggle to afford to live independently. Similarly, the reduction in income is 
causing all providers to make efficiencies including potential cuts to front line staff and is 
likely to undermine initiatives to provide support to more vulnerable households. 

 Extension of Right to Buy without a mechanism that will easily replace ‘lost’ housing will lead 
to a further reduction in choice and availability for those that rely upon rented housing.

 The introduction of changes to the Local Housing Allowance will encourage the 
encroachment of fixed term tenancies across the social housing sector

Added to this the obvious concerns that all landlords will have with the roll out of Universal Credit 
(UC) across the Borough and how this may adversely affect income. Under UC the government has 
withdrawn the automatic facility for rent to be paid directly to the landlord and responsibility has 
been transferred to the benefit recipient. It is likely that some households on welfare will struggle to 
make ends meet or may sacrifice rent payments when experiencing some sort of crisis. The potential 
impact upon social landlords of increased arrears will further undermine the role they can contribute 
to in supporting households that are vulnerable. The delivery plan will set out how we will need to 
work with all social landlords to help develop sustainable housing options including the development 
of sharers schemes and to pursue potential opportunities to develop housing schemes for young 
people linked to training and educational opportunities.  

16. Benefit Cap
In November 2016 the DWP will begin the roll out of the new lower benefit cap to all households as 
part of the Governments policy to make work pay. This will mean a reduction in income for between 
300-500 households across the Borough mainly those with 3 children or more. When the first wave 
of welfare reform was introduced, Councils received additional funding to assist them to support 
their communities. Through partnership working and with the additional resource we were able to 
implement a number of initiatives to help prepare households for change. This included targeting 
those households most at risk and pro-active support and a wider range involvement of our 
community champions to help to upskill people. However, this time apart from an increase in the 
Discretionary Housing Payment allocation, there will be no additional support. This means that all 
agencies will need to combine any resources they can bring to bear if we are aiming to undertake 
any targeted activity.

Page 29



12

17. Asylum and Refugee
Numbers accessing Homelessness services and other charitable and third sector services has 
increased as a result of a relatively high number of Asylum households being accommodated within 
the Borough as part of the Governments Asylum Dispersal Programme. Across the region there has 
been a 45% increase in numbers accommodated since 2010 – far higher than most other regions. 
While it is difficult to quantify the overall contribution Asylum dispersal makes to the local economy 
against the impact upon costs to services, we recognise that this does bring additional pressure upon 
homelessness and other statutory services. In response to this the Council negotiated a moratorium 
upon any further expansion of units of accommodation being developed within the Borough and is 
working with colleagues across the Regional Strategic Migration Partnership (RSMP) to develop a 
planned reduction in households being dispersed within the Borough. The council has met 
frequently with representatives of Serco who manage the Governments Asylum Dispersal contract in 
the Borough to consider issues and how we can ensure that Asylum seekers placed in our district are 
receiving adequate support. Further to this, through the Councils involvement in the RSMP we are 
working with regional representatives of DWP to improve timely access to benefits and employment 
support for refugee households. 

18. No Recourse to Public Funds
While Refugee households are given leave to remain in the UK, like most authorities, we have always 
experienced small numbers of households that become homeless and are deemed to have No 
Recourse to Public Funds. The type of households or individuals that may fall into this include 
spouses from abroad where there has been a breakdown in relationship or persons from abroad 
that have entered the country on a temporary visa that has expired. Recent changes in legislation 
governing migrant workers also means that people from EU countries that become unemployed will 
often be excluded from claiming benefits including housing benefit. There are also circumstances 
where asylum seeker households have not been granted leave to remain but are unable to return to 
their country of origin. 

Rochdale works in partnership with colleagues across GM and the Booth Centre based in 
Manchester City Centre provides a ‘reconnection service’ for homeless and destitute people from EU 
countries. Services work in partnership with the Home Office to encourage any failed Asylum 
household to take advantage of the government programme to assist households to return home. 
However, numbers of NRPF households are likely to increase over the next few years as a result of 
human trafficking, false marriages and the new Immigration Act which will transfer the responsibility 
of supporting NRPF households where there is a statutory duty from the Home Office to local 
authorities. 

19. Gypsies & Travellers
The Council provides a site for gypsies and travellers and since the last strategic review, occupancy 
has continued at near to 100% and although there is relatively low demand for longer term pitches, 
in the last 18 months numbers of illegal encampments has seen a significant increase. In order to 
meet increased demand, the Council has sought to reduce pressure on local communities by piloting 
use of short term temporary sites. The present site has been upgraded and is being managed on 
behalf of the council by Rochdale Boroughwide Housing as part of their contract to deliver 
Homelessness services and is currently fit for service however, over the next few years the Council 
will need to review existing and future demands upon the service in line with GM wide review. 

Households living on the site continue to be supported by colleagues in education and health 
although there may be some additional work to be done to ensure that transient households are 

Page 30



13

able to access primary healthcare services more easily. SHS will seek to ensure that this is picked up 
as part of the development of the locality plan and the proposed neighbourhood service access.

20. Equality and Diversity
Rochdale are proud to support the research undertaken on behalf of the Albert Kennedy Trust  into 
the link between homelessness and young LGBT people. It focused upon the needs and experience 
of LGBT  young people and it revealed a stark picture across the UK of lack of understanding, lack of 
support and high levels of street homelessness experienced by this cohort. Research showed that 
young people and particularly those still coming to terms with their sexuality became homeless as a 
result of issues this caused them at home and many found it difficult to be open about these issues 
when seeking support from services. 77% of young people felt that family rejection of their status 
was a causal factor in them becoming homeless and up to 69% had experienced abuse including 
physical abuse from family members prior to becoming homeless. Due to young people often not 
feeling confident about disclosing such issues the true cause of homelessness was often hidden. This 
in turn often resulted in lack of or inappropriate support from agencies. 

The Delivery Plan recognises that we need to ensure that services and support we offer is accessible 
and will be able to understand and meet the needs of any group or individual that may be at risk of 
being excluded.

21. GM Housing Needs Group and Devolution Agenda
The partnership across GM to respond to homelessness continues to be strong and in the last 3 
years is evidenced by continued successful cross authority initiatives around tackling frequent flyers 
and supporting people with complex dependencies into employment. GM partners meet regularly 
and exchange information and good practice and inform policy makers. The development of the 
devolved budgets and potential freedoms to the 10 GM authorities provides opportunities to bring 
to the fore a more collective approach across the sub region. It is the role of the GM Housing Needs 
Group (HNG) to ensure that the needs of those at the bottom of the community are being met and 
there is a growing understanding that regional regeneration will be under mined if not tackled. The 
increase in rough sleeping and pressures to find accommodation solutions for the increasing number 
of excluded households across most of the region will not be resolved by a housing strategy reliant 
upon regional investment in a programme in building aspirational houses. Lead officers for both PHE 
and GM have acknowledged that creative investment in enabling currently excluded parts of the 
community to contribute should be a priority. As such, at the invitation of the City Region Mayor GM 
partners are looking at whether Social Investment Fund models that could be supported through the 
£300m Housing Investment Fund that will be available over the next 10 years can be mobilised to 
meet some of the common challenges we face.  

22. Legislation and regulatory change
Running alongside the opportunities created through the Devolution of powers to the region will be 
the outcome of the Governments Select Committee consultation on Homelessness, the possible 
changes to the Homelessness legislation and the devolved powers that would allow some regulatory 
changes to how GM authorities may shape homelessness and housing rules locally. 

GM HNG has provided a joint response to the Government’s homelessness survey confirming the 
pressures as described above as contributory factors to causing homelessness and the concerns that 
we share that will make it more difficult for us to support households at risk. However, it also points 
to the success of increased partnership and the intention to continue to develop this through the 
public sector reform programme. 

Page 31



14

Further to this although the Government has not reported upon the outcome there is a growing 
expectation that there will be some proposed changes to homelessness legislation or that there may 
be a proposal that this could be piloted within the GM area. This could include adopting the recent 
legislative changes introduced in Wales (Housing (Wales) Act 2104), that places the authority under 
a duty to take all reasonable steps to prevent homelessness within 56 days of someone becoming 
homeless. It also enshrines the need for government and statutory partners to work more closely 
together and has removed rules around local connection. GM HNG has begun to consider how a 
regional wide approach towards homelessness and statutory responsibilities could be made to work 
and how this may be a blue print to a wholly integrated GM Homelessness delivery plan. 

23. Partnership Working
Performance around Homelessness prevention and the outcomes services have been able to help 
households to achieve over the last 10 years has been exceptional. Much of what has been achieved 
and the way services have developed has been as result of strong partnership working. However, the 
challenges that we now face cannot be overcome by simply continuing to do what we already do. 

The previous independent review carried out in 2012/13 recommended that the council should seek 
to transfer statutory and mandatory Homelessness services to a partner housing provider to 
facilitate an improved housing options offer. It also recommended that future commissioning of 
services should become more integrated. In 2014 the homelessness services transferred over to 
Rochdale Boroughwide Housing as an addendum to the previous Stock Transfer agreed between the 
Council, the Tenants and the housing provider. While this has brought about a number of benefits 
including colocation of the Homelessness service within the new public access office on Drake 
Street, the strategy refresh presents an opportunity to review the way we do things and to respond 
to the changes and challenges of the future. Further to this, although there has been a far greater 
joined up approach to commissioning of complimentary services, the outcome is that there 
continues to be a relatively fragmented approach with no single point of access or universal 
approach to assessment and delivery. 

Across the Borough there are a number of service providers and agencies working with specific 
groups or cohorts. All are committed; all are enabling good outcomes but often working with similar 
and same cohorts while there are still gaps and weakness in addressing others. Other services are 
trying to meet the needs of all households and there is a drift towards either spreading a resource 
too thinly or a one size fits all approach. Contracts are very tight and resources stretched but we 
believe better outcomes could be achieved by services combining a resource rather than services 
separately trying to achieve outcomes wholly by their own endeavours. Similarly, current 
arrangements mitigate against a case manager approach and as the journey for many households 
can often mean moving between services as part of a planned approach, it invariably means moving 
from one keyworker to another.

A key outcome of the strategy refresh is to recommend that we should take the opportunity to re-
align existing provisions and work with current and potentially future providers to provide a more 
cohesive housing offer.  As part of a revised specification we would seek to establish a single route of 
entry into services potentially supported by housing representation at community Hubs linked to 
locality agenda. We would expect triage and assessment services to be undertaken as part of the 
enhanced role of the Homelessness assessment service and that partner agencies will agree to a 
single assessment. The triage and Assessment service will take a lead role in moving individual 
households towards the most appropriate service or outcome that will most closely meet their 
needs as well as undertaking the statutory homelessness assessment that will run parallel to any 
prevention and housing options. 

Page 32



15

An enhanced universal assessment previously piloted would consider all aspects of households 
needs including Health & Wellbeing, education and access to employment and subsequent progress 
measured against an accompanying suite of performance indicators. It would allow people accessing 
the service to identify their own issues and pathways. We would recommend that statutory and 
currently commissioned or supported partner services to be commissioned in partnership with the 
councils Prevention and Community Wellbeing Group and or via an integrated commissioning 
process. This would enable the council to establish agreement across the partner services to the 
universal assessment and that the triage and assessment would take a lead role in referring 
individual households into the most appropriate service or outcome. We would expect all or any 
partner services to agree that they are effectively part of a whole service and that risk and outcomes 
are shared across the partnership.

The proposal is that we seek to design a more integrated offer and that we draw together the 
existing funding streams to support the commissioning of a whole service approach based upon a 
relatively simple specification. The specification would encourage current and future providers to 
work together, to work to their strengths and specialisms and to deliver on a suite of shared 
performance indicators. Services would be focused upon outcomes that are clearly set out to deliver 
improved health and wellbeing, to prevent all households from becoming homeless and having both 
a short term and longer term housing solution for all households. This would enable partners to 
work together and be more flexible, resources and opportunities shared, the scope for future 
development improved. 

 

24. Delivery Plan
The Borough requires a response that essentially is easily accessible and available to all households 
at risk of homelessness to allow for timely interventions. It requires a service that seeks to meet the 
needs of all households and particularly those that are currently are at high risk of exclusion or 
failure. It will be required to work proactively with all stakeholders to develop easier pathways to 
sustainable housing for those at low to medium risk. It requires a collective response that recognises 
that all partners will be equally responsible for effecting positive and sustainable outcomes.

The Delivery Plan that accompanies this Strategic Refresh sets out in both broad and detailed way 
how the council intends to achieve the outcomes that we need to aim for if we are to meet the 
challenges of the next few years.

Strategic Housing Services will take a key role in driving the actions forward and performance will be 
measured against the DCLG Performance Indicators (PI’s) that are recorded on a quarterly basis and 
additional local Health and Wellbeing PI’s as identified. However, as a key element of the Strategy, 
there is a hope and expectation that these are recognised as shared priorities and that there is a 
responsibility on all agencies and services to work together to achieve these outcomes for the 
people of the Borough. 

Performance Indicators
P1E indicators
Numbers of Households 
Prevented

Quarterly/Annually

Number of Priority Households Quarterly/Annually
Number of Households 
accommodated

Quarterly/Annually

Number of priority households Quarterly/Annually

Page 33



16

accommodated in B&B
Number 16/17 homeless Quarterly/Annually
Number homeless as a result 
of Domestic Abuse

Quarterly/Annually

Number repeat homelessness Quarterly/Annually

Additional Indicators
Number of children (all 
households) accommodated

Quarterly/Annually

Number of (all households) 
accommodated in B&B

Quarterly/Annually

Average length of time in 
temporary accommodation

Quarterly/Annually

Number of households 
resettled as part of a planned 
move on

Quarterly/Annually

Health & Wellbeing
Number of brief interventions 
carried out

Quarterly/Annually

Number assisted into primary 
healthcare

Quarterly/Annually

Number assisted into dental 
services

Quarterly/Annually

Number of people in training Quarterly/Annually
Number of people engaged in 
wellbeing activity 3 times per 
week

Quarterly/Annually

Number of health and 
wellbeing assessments 
completed

Quarterly/Annually

Number of people into 
employment

Quarterly/Annually

Referrals to Safeguarding Quarterly/Annually
Number of CAF begun Quarterly/Annually

Page 34



1

Homelessness Strategy Delivery Plan – Draft July 2016

The delivery plan will be overseen by the Homelessness Board and administered through Strategic Housing Services. Priorities will be agreed by the Joint 
Homelessness Board and Borough of Rochdale Homelessness Action and Information Network. Where appropriate actions will be undertaken by task and 
finish groups including representation from key stakeholders and service providers. Timescales will be reviewed by the Homelessness Board according to 
priorities.

Aim How Action Outcome Progress
Monitored on a 
quarterly basis with 
Homelessness Board.

1 Mortgage Rescue – we want to continue 
to prevent households at risk of 
homelessness as result of mortgage 
default.

Ensure that Debt 
casework for household 
at risk is included as 
part of the Advice 
service commissioned 
by the Council. 

Continue to monitor 
performance

Households able to 
remain in their home or 
enable a planned 
transfer to a more 
affordable outcome.

Monthly returns from 
service commissioned 
through CAB are 
reported to the Board 
on a quarterly basis.

2 Bed & Breakfast – we want to prevent any 
household with children from being 
placed in B&B type accommodation. We 
want to reduce to nil all use of B&B type 
accommodation.
Where we have no other option, we will 
ensure that B&B accommodation is of a 
reasonable standard.

We will ensure that 
there is sufficient 
supply to meet needs.

Review existing 
temporary and 
emergency 
accommodation 
provision.

Work with partners 

The health and 
wellbeing of children 
and other vulnerable 
people will not be 
compromised by use of 
B&B.

Reduction in use of 

Use of B&B is 
monitored through RBH 
Homelessness contract.

P
age 35



2

across GM to establish 
and agree to a GM wide 
quality standard for all 
B&B accommodation

B&B. 

3 Domestic Abuse – support households at 
risk of homelessness as a result of 
domestic abuse and support the 
development of an integrated approach.

Ensure that there is 
sufficient support for 
households 
experiencing domestic 
abuse.

Support the work of 
integrated 
commissioners.

Ensure that 
Homelessness services 
continues to prioritise 
partnership working 
such as involvement in 
STRIVE.

Review information 
sharing between 
housing providers to 
ensure that potential 
perpetrators and those 
at risk recognise 
safeguarding issues. 

That services 
commissioned 
compliment those 
already provided and 
help address potential 
gaps.

Good practice is 
adopted across housing 
providers.  

Households that 
become homeless due 
to domestic abuse are 
reported quarterly 

4 Rochdale Homelessness Prevention Fund –
partners should work together to pursue 
funding opportunities and we should seek 
to develop a quick access Prevention fund 
that people can use to facilitate 

BRHAIN will take a lead 
role in facilitating a 
partnership bid.  

Utilise the expertise 
and experience within 
individual services and 
agencies to pro-actively 
bid for funding 

A Prevention Fund

Strengthened links and 
establish a more 
effective partnership to 

T & F group will 
establish partnership 
protocol.

P
age 36



3

prevention. opportunities on behalf 
of the BRHAIN  
Partnership.

support homeless 
households.
 

5 Case management – we want to promote 
a Lead officer/case manager approach to 
provide consistency and to facilitate a 
joined up approach. 

Services and Agencies 
agree to a more 
collective response. 

Future specifications 
across services 
commissioned to 
reflect Lead 
Officer/case manager 
approach.

Work with partners and 
stakeholders to 
Develop and pilot a 
Partnership Protocol.

Ensure lessons learnt 
from pilot can inform 
future service 
specification. 

More effective joined 
up services and 
improved outcomes for 
service users.

T & G to design model 
based upon first access 
principle.

To engage with 
commissioners to agree 
a pilot

6 Cold Weather Protocol - we want to 
ensure that no one is at risk of serious 
harm or death as a result of sleeping 
rough. We want to continue to meet the 
Councils commitment to the principles of 
No Second Night Out.

Improve and increase 
CW Provision across 
the Borough 

Review existing 
protocol and identify 
future partners that 
may be able to 
contribute to sharing 
the support.

Prevent rough sleeping 
in the Borough

Rough Sleeping is 
measured on annual 
basis. From 1st April 
2017 we will introduce 
a ‘local’ measurement 
in line with emerging 
practice to report in 
time rough sleeping in 
the Borough

7 Exclusions – we want to try and prevent 
small numbers of service users with 
chaotic and complex lifestyles from losing 
their supported accommodation and 

Develop an early 
warning system 
amongst providers to 
introduce respite 

Review exclusion 
policies.

Agree to a Traffic Light 

Prevent rough sleeping 
and service attrition. 

Establish a local 
protocol among 
supported 
accommodation 

P
age 37



4

becoming street homeless. arrangements and time 
limited exclusions.  

early warning system. providers

8 BRHAIN Website - we want to improve the 
website and make it more effective in 
engaging the wider community and to 
promote a community based response to 
supporting people at risk of homelessness. 

BRHAIN task and finish 
group to explore 
opportunities and 
improve website.

Review current website 
and identify support to 
enable improvements.

To link the website to 
extend use of website 
as a prevention tool. 

Be able to sign post 
people in the 
community and those 
at risk of homelessness 
to access timely help 
and support.

T & F group to review 
current provision and 
recommend changes

9 Private Rented Sector rent guarantee – 
the ability to support households into 
rehousing is essential if we are to meet 
demand. 

Support the 
continuation of Rent 
Guarantee. 

Review existing 
arrangements and 
ensure that the council 
continue to prioritise 
provision of the service

Monitor performance. Reported annually.
Included in Quarterly 
prevention returns

10 Housing options for previously cared for 
young people – we want to work more 
closely with our partner providers to 
provide the best possible offer for our 
cared for children.

Social housing 
providers will help the 
council to provide 
homes for cared for 
young people.  

Developing a Housing 
Protocol amongst our 
partner providers 
based upon the 
councils Corporate 
Parent principles.

Improved housing 
options and support for 
vulnerable young 
people.
 

CSC record housing 
accommodation 
outcomes for all 
previously cared for 
young people and 
reports directly to 
Corporate Parenting 
Board.

P
age 38



5

Introduce a local 
variation to the 
determination of 
Intentionality for 
previously cared for 
young people at risk of 
homelessness.

Consult with 
stakeholders.  

Prevent previously 
cared for young people 
slipping into cycle of 
homelessness. 

Board will consult with 
elected members prior 
to any decision to 
engage with wider 
consultation with 
housing providers and 
partners

To facilitate a better 
route for previously 
cared for young people 
relocating to 
neighbouring boroughs 
as part of a planned 
resettlement.

To build upon Shared 
Services approach and 
links with GM Housing 
Needs Group to 
introduce a GM wide 
protocol to assist young 
people relocating to 
their home borough.

A more supportive 
pathway for young 
people returning to 
their home borough. 

To be reported to 
Corporate Parenting 
Board and linked to 
Virtual Cared For 
Children performance 
plan

11  Withdrawal of Housing benefit for 18-
21yr olds –we want to prevent 18-21yr 
olds from becoming homeless, but ensure 
we have a safety net for those with no 
other option.

To have quick access to 
training and 
employment.

To identify potential 
short term housing 
options that may be 
exempt from HB rules.

We will work with all 
partners and in 
particular colleagues in 
Economic Affairs to 
prioritise pathways to 
training and 
employment for 18-
21yr olds.  

Support appropriate 
accommodation and 
housing providers to 
develop pathways to 
training and 
employment that may 
enable exemptions.

Sustainable housing 
options for any 18-21yr 
old at risk of 
homelessness.

Prevent any 18-21yr old 
from sleeping rough.

Monitor number of 18-
21yr olds seeking 
assistance.
(110 18-21yr olds 
accessed services in 
2015)

P
age 39



6

To ensure that we have 
a place of safety for any 
18-21yr old at risk of 
sleeping rough

With partners and 
commissioners to 
identify the provision of 
a place of safety for any 
18-21yr old at risk of 
rough sleeping by 
revisiting the CWP 
Protocol 

12 Local Housing Allowance under 35yrs – we 
want to develop suitable housing options 
for single people under 35yrs. 

Facilitate and support 
the continued 
development of 
Sharers scheme across 
all housing providers.

Share good practice 
and learn from 
experience of partner 
agencies that already 
operate Sharers 
schemes.

Ensure that access to 
training and an 
emphasis on assisting 
people to acquire skills 
is included in any 
future commissioning.
Encourage partners to 
pool resources and 
vocational and pre-
employment activities 
to widen the 
opportunity for people 
that need support.  

Easy access to house 
sharing options across 
the Borough. 

Review data base to 
capture and report 
number of single under 
35yrs seeking 
assistance. 

13 Health and Wellbeing – we want to 
improve the health and wellbeing of 
people that are at risk of homelessness 
and to enable people to develop more 
healthy lifestyles. 

Embed improved 
health and wellbeing as 
universal aim for all 
people accessing advice 
and support

All services to adopt 
Making Every Contact 
Matter.

Contribute to improved 
health and wellbeing of 
people accessing 
services demonstrated 
through PIs and case 

Agree a common set of 
PIs to be reported back 
to Board

P
age 40



7

All front line staff to be 
trained to provide brief 
interventions.

Introduce a suite of 
H&W performance 
indicators to  
demonstrate 
contribution that 
services make to 
improved outcomes

Share good practice 
through Partnership 
arrangements

notes.

14 Pathways to health – we want people to 
be able to identify and access services and 
opportunities that can help support them.

We will work with 
colleagues in PHE and 
CCG to develop better 
pathways. 

Undertake a Health 
Survey to identify key 
issues and common 
barriers

Improve dialogue 
between health and 
housing services 
through development 
of key contacts.  

Base line information 
that can be shared with 
commissioners and 
providers

Utilise feedback from 
services and service 
users gathered through 
the Review and to 
include outcome from 
Frequent Flyers project.

15 Hospital Discharge – we want to prevent 
people being discharged from hospital 
before a housing option is in place.

Re-establish a Hospital 
Discharge Protocol.

Review existing 
arrangements and work 
with colleagues in 
health to re-establish 
the protocol

Prevent people being 
discharged at 
immediate risk of 
sleeping rough. 

Rough sleepers 
monitored as above

T & F group to review 
protocol

16 Whole family approach – we want to Recognise that all Where possible we will To promote sustainable Number of CAFs open

P
age 41



8

reinforce a whole family approach to 
supporting households at risk.

members of a 
household will be at 
risk and may also 
contribute to successful 
outcomes.

encourage providers to 
adopt Common 
Assessment Framework 
principles when 
assisting households 
with children. 

outcomes

17 Housing First – we want to provide a 
housing option for excluded and complex 
households. 

We will work across 
partnerships to provide 
a housing solution for 
complex households.

We will use the Multi 
Agency Risk 
management tool kit to 
develop appropriate 
support.

Partners and housing 
providers will work 
together to identify 
suitable housing 
options.

Partners will work 
together to pursue 
additional resources.
 

Prevent rough sleeping 
and tenancy attrition.

Identify cohort through 
Multi agency 
assessment.

To Pilot HF model and 
report back and share 
outcomes through the 
Board and to wider 
commissioners

18 The community – we want to harness the 
support across the wider community that 
can help support people at risk and enable 
sustainability

BRHAIN will take a lead 
role in engaging with 
community based 
groups, faith groups 
and volunteers to 
provide support for 
people at risk of 
homelessness. 

Sub group will liaise 
with faith groups, 
voluntary groups and 
seek the support of 
Community Champions 
in helping to identify 
potential support.

BRHAIN will represent 

People at risk of 
homelessness will be 
able to support local 
networks to be part of 
the community.

Membership of BRHAIN 
and website to reflect 
broader partnership

P
age 42



9

the needs of homeless 
people as part of the 
Voluntary Sector 
Partnership/Health & 
Wellbeing Partnership. 

19 Welfare Reform – we need to provide 
short term assistance to households 
affected by ongoing welfare reform and 
enable them to develop resilience

Benefit Cap
We will provide 
targeted support for 
households. 

We will liaise with 
colleagues in 
DWP/Rochdale Benefit 
team to identify 
households most at 
risk.

We will work with 
social landlords and 
other partners to 
contact households in 
both social and PRS

Liaise with colleagues 
in Revenue & Benefits 
to support households 
to access DHP.

We will liaise with 
colleagues in Economic 
Affairs and Job Centre 
to encourage and guide 
households towards 
training and 
employment advice 

Homelessness 
prevented by use of 
DHP to enable 
households to make 
changes and reduce 
further risk of 
homelessness. 

Reported through 
Welfare Reform Board 
and Dashboard

Access to training and 
employment to be 
identified as a new PI 
common to all 
providers

P
age 43



10

and support.

20 Equality and Diversity – we want 
marginalised and underrepresented 
households to able to access timely 
support and prevention interventions.

We will provide 
confidence that will 
allow people to access 
support in a timely 
manner.

We will review our 
assessment processes.

We will ensure that 
website and public 
information 
acknowledge the needs 
and support of 
potentially 
marginalised 
households.

Where necessary we 
will seek advice and 
support from groups or 
agencies that represent 
marginalised people.  

Recognise across the 
partnership that we 
may need to adapt 
services to help meet 
specific needs.

People will not be 
marginalised or 
adversely affected as a 
result of their gender, 
sexuality or ethnicity. 

T&F Group will 
undertake a review 
across all services and 
report back to board 
with recommendations

21 GM Devolution – we want to influence 
and benefit from opportunities created 
through the devolution agenda. 

As part of the GM 
Housing Needs Group 
we will continue to 
engage and negotiate 
with partners across 
the sub region. 

Exchange information 
and provide feedback.

Take a lead role in 
promoting the 
corporate aims and 

The Borough will 
benefit from any 
opportunities as a 
result of sub regional 
working.

Reported to Joint Board 
quaterly

P
age 44



11

outcomes of the 
Borough as part of any 
Devo Manc offer

Advise senior managers 
and elected members. 

22 Prepare for change in legislation – we 
want to be prepared for potential changes 
in legislation and possible cap on 
supported accommodation.

The Homelessness 
service will consider 
likely changes and how 
this may affect prevent 
and assessment.
 

Exchange information 
across the GM Housing 
Needs Group

Undertake a snap shot 
local exercise to 
consider any potential 
impact upon services 
and assessments. 

Services, elected 
members, 
commissioners and the 
wider public 
understand any 
potential changes and 
can react in a planned 
way.

T & F Group to inform 
local providers and to 
provide information to 
elected members on 
likely and actual 
impact. 
Linked to Homelessness 
P1Es and likely update 
of information required 
as part of the GM 
Homelessness 
Prevention partnership

P
age 45



1

APPENDIX 1

Equality Impact Assessment

 

Rochdale Councils Homelessness Strategy 2016-2019 (Draft)

Function Strategy Policy Project Other, please specify below

X

Service:

Neighbourhoods

Section: 

Strategic Housing Services

Responsible Officer:

Peter Maynard

Housing Services Manager

Name of function/strategy/ policy/ project assessed:

Rochdale Councils Homelessness Strategy

Date of Assessment: 14th July 2016

Officers Involved:

Ian Jolley

Graham Pilling

Peter Maynard

Page 46



2

1.What is the purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project assessed?

(Briefly describe the aims, objectives and purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project)

Rochdale Borough Councils Homelessness Strategy 2016-2019 sets out how the council will seek to 
support households at risk of homelessness, to prevent homelessness and how it will support households 
that become homeless. This is based upon a refresh of the current strategy and a review of homelessness 
in the Borough. 

It aims to identify key priorities and outcomes and mitigate future demand. The strategy ensures that 
objectives and outcomes are aligned to and support wider corporate aims of improving health and wellbeing; 
preventing homelessness; encouraging independence.

2.Who are the key stakeholders?

Elected members

Service providers

Statutory services

Health ervci8es

GMP

The voluntary sector

The wider community

Housing Providers

Private landlords and Lettings Agents

Page 47



3

3. What is the scope of this equality impact assessment? That is, what is included in this 
assessment.  

Homelessness can affect any household in the Borough and may occur in any district. 

The Homelessness Strategy Group has undertaken a strategic review of homelessness across the Borough. 
It has taken into account  and has taken into account a range of data that is available and has looked in 
particular at

 Excluded groups
 Families, single homeless people and childless couples.
 People with complex dependencies
 Groups at higher risk of homelessness
 Causes of homelessness
 Current strategies and policies that support prevention
 Current services and support available to homeless households
 How this strategy links with broader corporate aims and where there is overlap between other 

strategies s and corporate aims.
 It has identifies emerging and potential challenges
 It has made recommendations and has a delivery plan that will help mitigate against future 

homelessness.

4.Which needs is this function/strategy/ policy/ project designed to meet?

The strategy ensures that the Council has identified key needs and challenges and a delivery plan that sets 
out how it intends to support households at risk of homelessness. 

The aims and objectives within it are designed to:
 address the causes and prevent homelessness where possible, 
 deal effectively with those the Council has a duty to accommodate,
 provide sufficient temporary accommodation for those who are homeless
 ensure that appropriate support is available to prevent repeat homelessness 
 to contribute to wider corporate aims to enable people to improve their health and wellbeing
 to support people to contribute to the wider community.

Page 48



4

5.Has a needs analysis been undertaken?

A strategic review of homelessness in the Borough was undertaken by a Homelessness Strategy Group. 
This is a task and finish group that included representatives of service providers, statutory services and 
stakeholders and was overseen and directed by the Joint Homelessness Strategy Board.

In addition, the Group had taken into account broader corporate aims and strategies including the Mental 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy, Public Health Plan 2016/17 and the Corporate Plan. 

The review undertaken has followed the requirements of the Housing Act 2002 to consider 

a) the current levels, and likely future levels, of homelessness 

    in the borough;

b) how effective agencies are in preventing homelessness 

c) whether is there enough temporary accommodation

d) whether arrangements are in place for homeless people to 

    access settled housing

e) whether support and advice services are effective 

f ) what resources are available to carry out these activities  

6.Who is affected by this function/strategy/ policy/ project?

All households that are potentially vulnerable to or at risk of homelessness including those in priority groups 
such as young people, people leaving institutions and older people.

The wider community and potential prosperity of the Borough can be adversely affected by the impact of 
homelessness on services and communities.

Page 49



5

7.Who has been involved in the review or development of this function/strategy/ policy/ project and 
who has been consulted?  State your consultation/involvement methodology.

The Joint Homelessness Board includes representatives from key stakeholders and partner agencies 
including service providers and representatives of service users.

Progress and development of the strategic review has been reported regularly to the Joint Board and the 
Borough of Rochdale Homelessness Action and Information Network. (BRHAIN). The Joint Board is 
overseen by the portfolio holder for Housing.

A task and finish group facilitated by the Homelessness Manager that included representatives from 
stakeholders and the wider BRHAIN partnership undertook the review.

Consultation/Involvement methodology 

The recently completed strategic review of homelessness involved consultation with a wide range of 
statutory services, voluntary sector organisations and representatives of the service users. The draft 
strategy has been shared with colleagues from Bolton Council who have acted as ‘critical friend’.

It is proposed that Strategic Housing will  consult with the same services, organisations and groups including

Stakeholders, service providers, elected members and the wider community. We will also undertake public 
consultation through the Council’s web site. Feedback will be sought from all members, the Welfare Reform 
Board, and Overview and Scrutiny Committee.                 

 

8.What data have you considered for this assessment and have any gaps in the data been identified.  
What action will be taken to close any data gaps?

Data includes 

 Statutory information collected and reported to DCLG as part of P1E returns
 Shared information about anonymised individuals
 Adult care performance monitoring 
 The mental Health and Wellbeing Commissioning Strategy 2014-2017
 Tackling homelessness  and exclusion: Understanding complex lives JRT  

Page 50



6

 Impact of HB Reform in Rochdale Brendan Nevin & Philip Leather
 Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2012-2015
 Rochdale Substance Misuse Needs Assessment 2015/16
 Integrated Early Help Strategy 2013-2016  
 Welfare Reform – impacts and responses. K Mitchell, D Cummins, C Tostevin. 
 LGBT Youth Homelessness. Albert Kennedy Trust. 
 Homelessness Strategy Survey 2015

Although we have good information in relation to health and welfare needs of vulnerable households the 
strategy has identified that we need to get a better understanding f the health needs of homeless people in 
the Borough. The strategy commits partner agencies to undertaking a Health Assessment. 

9.Are there any other documents or strategies which are linked to this assessment? If so, please 
include hyperlinks to these documents below, where available.

10.What impact will this function/strategy/policy/project have on all the protected groups?  This 
includes both positive and potentially negative impacts.

Race Equality 

The Borough currently experiences a relatively high demand for assistance from diverse communities 
largely due to the number of households that acquire leave to remain while resident in the Borough. While 
many of these households require only short term help the strategy recognises the need to ensure that 
services are accessible and available to all households.

All services currently commissioned or delivered through partnership arrangements provide support for a 
diverse range of households including establish communities and new and emerging communities in the 
Borough including Refugee and Asylum households and Migrant workers.

Page 51



7

Disabled People

Following consultation it has been agreed that as part of the review of health needs of homeless people in 
the Borough that will be undertaken across the partnership, we will include a broader assessment to reflect 
issues relating to disabilities. We will use the broadest definition to enable the assessment to include issues 
such as Asperger’s.

We are aware that some people that experience homelessness are often excluded from main stream and 
generic services due to their challenging behaviours and the strategy recognises the need for access to 
assistance to be inclusive.  

The homelessness legislation is designed to ensure that any household containing a person who has a 
significant physical disability or mental health problem is considered to be in a priority need category and 
provided with accommodation. 

In terms of physical disabilities, consideration should be given to accessibility of temporary accommodation. 
Some temporary accommodation is suitable for people with some disabilities, and the domestic violence 
provision does provide specific units for those with a physical disability. 

The Petrus and Brentwood Day Centres play an important role in supporting single disabled people and 
those with mental health problems who have accommodation but need additional support. This strategy 
recommends the continuation of funding for that provision and support for the development of additional 
accommodation and support for those with complex needs (including mental health needs). Both these 
measures will target resources towards improving services for people with mental health issues.  

Services commissioned to support the aims of the strategy do support people that present with a range 
health related issues including in some cases disabilities, mental ill health, mobility issues and general poor 
health. 

Mental Ill health both diagnosed and undiagnosed is prevalent amongst services users using homelessness 
services and seeking assistance..

Services support people that present with a range health related issues including in some cases disabilities, 
mental ill health, mobility issues and general poor health. 

Mental Ill health both diagnosed and undiagnosed is prevalent amongst services users using both services.

Services advocates, advises and supports numerous individuals often with multiple mental health issues and 
these services are  often the only agency service users are not excluded from due to the nature of their 
challenging behaviour. 

 

Page 52



8

Carers

There is no data available on the prevalence of carers within the population or within customers approaching 
the homelessness service. However, it is not considered that the proposals within the homelessness 
strategy would adversely impact on this group. 

Where a homeless application includes a carer, they will be treated as a member of the family, and 
accommodation provided, if required. 

Risk of homelessness can sometimes occur due to pressures upon family members and carers. The 
strategy recognises that family breakdown is a common cause of homelessness. The strategy seeks to 
mitigate against this by continuing to promote both improved health and behaviours of individuals at risk of 
homelessness and also by mediation and planned resettlement.

The aspiration to promote a case management approach and a whole family approach recognises the 
contribution carers and family members can make towards supporting people at risk of homelessness.  

Gender

The population of Rochdale Borough as a whole is evenly split between males and females according to the 
Census 2011 data. The homelessness legislation doesn’t distinguish between males or females although 
single parent households are more likely to be adult women with children rather than men. 

Although the 3 main reasons for priority homelessness include households experiencing domestic abuse, 
households homeless as a result of family breakdown and households living in the Borough being given 
leave to remain, the majority of households seeking assistance are white single men aged between 25-
44yrs. 

The strategy promotes the need to continue to provide gender specific support. The strategic review and 
subsequent strategy refresh has recognised that proportionately single women at risk of homelessness are 
more likely to experience complex dependencies and including mental ill health. 

Page 53



9

Age

The strategy is not age specific but seeks to ensure that services are accessible to household and 
individuals of all ages. 

Young people are more at risk and vulnerable to becoming homeless than the adult population as a whole. 
The homelessness review identified some concerns about the lack of a clear pathway for young people, and 
high rates of tenancy failure amongst under 25s, leaving them with debts/ poor housing history and a cycle 
of repeat homelessness. 

The Homelessness strategy proposes a clear pathway, and close working with children’s services to ensure 
that young people are protected and supported if they become homeless. Measures relevant to this group 
also include proposals for working with social landlords to agree action plans for improved assessment and 
housing management so as to reduce the rate of tenancy failure amongst young people. 

The strategy recognises in particular the challenges facing young people aged between 18-21years; single 
people on benefit under 35yrs and care leavers.

The majority of service users are aged between 25-44years although there are small numbers of people 
seeking assistance aged between 16/17yrs and +75years.

Armed Forces and Ex-Armed Forces Personnel

The strategy recognises that Ex-armed forces personnel may need additional support and that partners will 
work with current specialist support services to ensure the needs of this group are met in accordance with 
the Councils commitment. 

Sexual Orientation

The strategic review has recognised that young people in LGBT groups are disproportionality at risk of 
becoming homeless and has taken into account the recent research undertaken by Albert Kennedy Trust. 
One of the aims of the strategy will be for all partners to ensure that services are fully accessible. 

Page 54



10

Gender Reassignment

Asa above the strategy aims to ensure that anyone at risk of homelessness or sleeping rough should not be 
excluded as a result of gender reassignment. The strategy recognises that people undertaking gender 
reassignment may be at heightened risk of homelessness due to family breakdown, loss of networks or 
harassment.

Religion or Belief

Census results show that 18% of the population consider themselves to have ‘no religion’ as opposed to 
10% in 2001. Christians have reduced in number by 11.5% and Muslims increased by 4.5%. Other religious 
groups have remained relatively stable. 

There is no reason to believe that there will be an impact on any particular religious group from the 
proposals contained within the Homelessness Strategy, although consideration could be given to how faith 
needs are accommodated within temporary accommodation. For example the sharing of cooking facilities 
and utensils (used for Halal and non-Halal meat) would cause concern for those of a Muslim faith and they 
may wish to bring their own utensils with them. Currently the Councils temporary accommodation for families 
is fully furnished including kitchen equipment. Accommodation for singles is fully catered: removing catering 
services makes it easier for those with faith needs (or other special diets) to choose appropriate foods, but 
care will need to be taken in designing new shared kitchen facilities. 

Faith groups are often involved with service provision and some provide essential front line services such as 
food banks, furniture distribution and family support.  The strategy proposes an expansion of the 
homelessness forum, with peer support for emerging/ smaller charities and community groups. 

The strategy recognises the diversity of households at risk of homelessness and their cultural, ethnic and 
religious requirements. 

Page 55



11

Pregnant Women or Those on Maternity Leave

The strategy recognises pregnant women and those that have recently given birth are a priority group and 
that the council is committed to supporting all households with children at risk of homelessness.

Marriage or Civil Partnership

The Census figures show that the % of people being married in Rochdale has remained stable at around 
44% between 2001 and 2011 with 293 people entering into a civil partnership which equates to 0.2% of the 
population.  The largest increase is amongst single (never married) which grew by 6% to 35% of the 
population. 

The Homelessness legislation takes no account of whether or not someone is married or in a civil 
partnership and would treat people as in a relationship if there were married, in a civil partnership or just 
living together. Therefore the proposals within the Homelessness Strategy do not impact adversely on this 
group.

The strategy recognises the council’s commitment to provide an inclusive approach to supporting all 
households at risk of homelessness including single people, families and childless couples.

11.What are your main conclusions from this analysis?

The strategy recognises that although any household can become at risk of homelessness, those most 
vulnerable include a high proportion of households without social/family networks that can support them, are 
most likely to be from deprived areas and on low or welfare based incomes. Many are excluded from 
services and have had poor life chances, made poor or ill informed choices and are likely to have health 
related issues.

The strategy is specific in seeking to tackle exclusions, improve accessibility and assessment, and enable 
individuals to achieve sustained outcomes that included improved health, wellbeing and life chances.  

The proposals within the Homelessness Strategy are designed specifically to address the needs of the most 
disadvantaged people living in the Borough. A number of the equality groups within the EIA are positively 
targeted with actions designed to support and help them to maintain a home. Where homelessness occurs, 
support to find, secure and maintain accommodation is provided either through the Council if there is a 
statutory duty to accommodate or through provision of advice and assistance to secure accommodation 
through another provider. The emphasis is on provision of an accessible service and effective pathways to 
ensure sufficient advice and support are in place to make sure that once accommodation is found it is 
maintained.

Page 56



12

12.What are your recommendations?

The consultation has already identified some addition actions specifically with regards the broader health 
assessment to consider whether disability is a contributing factor to homelessness or prevents people to 
access services and resettle in the community.

There are also opportunities to engage in specialist support to ensure that services are accessible for all 
groups in the community such as those from LGBT.

The Strategy is aimed at a number of groups that are at relatively high risk and it is appropriate that 
emergency cold weather provision and plans to support any individual at risk of sleeping rough should be 
reviewed. 

13.What actions are you going to take to address the findings of this assessment?  Please attach an 
action plan including details of designated officers responsible for completing these actions.

As part of a review of the strategy we will task the BRHAIN to coordinate a self-assessment survey to 
measure the effectiveness of the strategy. 

Signed (Completing Officer):___________________ Date:_____________

Signed (Head of Service): ____________________ Date:_____________

Page 57



13

Equality Impact Assessment Action Plan 2016/17

Action Outcome Target Date For 
Completion

Resource 
Implications

Lead Officer

To include a broad definition of 
disability as part of the 
Homelessness Health Survey

To identify whether the needs of 
homeless people with disabilities 
are being met as part of the  
strategy. 

March 2017 To be done within existing 
resources

Ian Jolley

To design a self-assessment to 
enable services and organisations to 
measure accessibility for LGBT 
client group

To ensure that people feel confident 
in accessing services and that the 
strategy has enabled services to 
meet the needs of LGBT client 
group

March 2017 To be done within existing 
resources

Ian Jolley

To ask BRHAIN to review CWP 
Protocol

To ensure sufficient 
accommodation is available to 
support No Second Night Out

November 2017 To be done within existing 
resources

Ian Jolley

P
age 58



Subject: Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 2 
Performance Update

Status:  Publication

Report to: Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Services and Regulation

Date: Wednesday, 9 November 2016
 

Report of: Director of Neighbourhoods

Author Email:    john.entwistle@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: John Entwistle

Tel: 01706 925622

1 Purpose of Report

1.1       To report progress at the end of Quarters 1and 2 (1st April – 30th September 2016) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate Plan 2016-
17 and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2016-17.   

2 Recommendations

2.1       Members are asked to review the information contained within the report and the
 appendices.

3 Background

3.1 The committee previously approved the Directorate Plans for 2016-17 for the Economy 
Directorate and Neighbourhoods Directorate.

3.2 In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, progress 
towards the targets contained in directorate plans are to be reported to relevant 
Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. 

3.3 It was agreed that due to the summer break coinciding with the end of Quarter 1 that 
progress for both Quarters 1 and 2 would be combined and reported at the end of 
Quarter 2 

3.4 The Quarter 2 progress reports for the Economy Directorate and Neighbourhoods 
Directorate are attached at Appendices 1 and 2. Actions within each appendix have 
been colour coded in accordance with the following criteria.

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date 

Page 59

Agenda Item 6



Amber:  Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control 

Green: Action completed by the target date 
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

The appendices include a commentary against actions that are showing red, amber or 
purple

4 Economy Directorate Plan 2016-17 Progress

4.1 Performance Overview
91.67% (22) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2016-17 are not yet due for 
completion but are currently on target.  Of the remaining 2 actions, 1 is now complete 
with the other not completed by the target date. The chart below shows the overall 
performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 2. 

4.2 Performance Issues
The completed (green) action relates to adoption of the Core Strategy whilst the 
incomplete (red) action relates to completing the proposed heritage and public realm 
projects and this is progressing.

5 Neighbourhood  Directorate Plan 2016-17 Progress

5.1 Performance Overview
Twenty two actions (78.57%) included in the Directorate Plan 2016-17 are not yet due 
for completion but are currently on target.  Four actions (14.29%) have not been 
completed by the target date. Two actions (7.14%) have been completed. The chart 
below shows the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at 
the end of Quarter 2. 

Economy Directorate Plan:
Summary of performance against 

actions

Page 60



5.2 Performance Issues
Four actions were not completed by the target date:
 Work on the launch of the new place branding project and Rochdale brand has 

been delayed, after a meeting with the Council Leader and Chief Executive on 13th 
October this will now move to the next phase. 

 The roll out of Electronic Research and Intelligence Centre (eRIC) has been further 
delayed due to issues with developer capacity. Negotiations complete for 
additional developer time via pick up in complete actions. Revised roll out date in 
November 

 The action relating to working in partnership with land owners and developers to 
bring forward a supply of good quality housing sites is progressing well with 
discussions ongoing and interest being shown in several potential development 
sites across the Borough.

 The action to maintain and review the Transport Asset Management Plan was due 
for completion at the end of September 2016 and the latest review will be 
published in November. 

Two actions were completed to timescale at the end of Quarter 2 relating to robust 
monitoring of the street lighting PFI contract and also exploring alternative delivery 
models with other Local Authorities and our Partners.

6 Conclusions 

6.1 Monitoring shows that progress is being made in delivering against targets in the 
Directorate Plans for 2016-17.

6.2 A further update showing progress at the end of the third quarter will be brought to 
Committee in February. 

7 Alternatives Considered 

7.1 Not applicable 

Neighbourhood Directorate Plan:
Summary of performance against actions

Page 61



8 Financial Implications 

8.1 None – priorities in Directorate Plans are delivered within approved budgets 

9 Legal Implications

9.1 None

10 Personnel Implications
 

10.1 None
 

11 Corporate Priorities 

11.1 All actions in Directorate Plans are linked to the Corporate Priority or Priorities to which 
they contribute
 

12 Risk Assessment Implications
 

12.1 None

13 Equalities Impacts
 

13.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment 
There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report

 
13.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments 

There are no equality/community issues arising from this report 

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Economy Directorate Plan 2016-17

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale 
OL16 1XU

Page 62



 

 

 1 

            4 
 

JOINT GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY 9 SEPTEMBER 2016  
  AT MANCHESTER TOWN HALL 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Bolton MBC     Cllr Kevin McKeon 

Cllr Debbie Newall 
 
Bury MBC     Cllr Roy Walker 
       Cllr Stella Smith 
 
Manchester CC    Cllr Angeliki Stogia 
 
Oldham MBC     Cllr Colin McLaren 
            
Rochdale MBC    Cllr Michael Holly 
 
Salford CC     Cllr David Jolley 
      
Stockport MBC    Cllr Yvonne Guariento 
       Cllr John McGahan 
  
Tameside MBC    Cllr John Bell 
       Cllr Gillian Peet 
       
 Trafford MBC    Cllr Barry Brotherton 
       Cllr Pam Dixon 
       Cllr Michael Young 
   
Wigan MBC     Cllr John O’Brien (Chair) 
       Cllr Pam Stewart    
 
IN ATTENDANCE 

 
 GMCA     Cllr Richard Leese 
  
 NEW ECONOMY    John Holden 
 

GMIST     Susan Ford 
       Nicola Ward 
        

 
16/21  APOLOGIES 
 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 2 

Apologies were received from Cllr Andrew Morgan (Bolton), Cllr Cheryl Brock (Oldham), 
Cllrs Neil Butterworth and Sara Rowbotham (Rochdale), Cllrs Jillian Collinson and John 
Walsh (Salford). 
 
 
16/22 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
The Chair thanked members for attending, and reminded members to give their apologies 
if they are unable to attend the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That GMIST continue to monitor attendance at GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool meetings and 
report back to the Chair. 
 
 
16/23 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in respect to any item on the agenda. 
 
 
16/24 MINUTES OF THE GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL MEETING HELD ON 12 

AUGUST 2016  
 

The Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 12 August 2016 were 
submitted for consideration. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
To approve the Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 12 August 
2016. 
 
 
16/25 SCRUTINY POOL WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17 
 
Members received a report on the Work Programme for the GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool, 
which also included a forward plan of reports being brought to the GMCA and AGMA 
Executive Board. 
 
Members were asked to note the progress of each of the Scrutiny Task and Finish groups 
as set out in section 2 of the report. 
 
A member queried whether there could be regular progress reports on the GM Strategy 
(GMS) performance framework.  Officers reminded the Pool that the GMS Performance 
Report was an annual iteration, however regular updates on the key performance 
indicators could be shared and in addition specific areas of the GMS could be brought 
forward for detailed scrutiny. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

Page 64



 

 

 3 

1. To note the GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny work programme. 
 

2. To note the progress with each of the Scrutiny task and finish groups. 
 

3. To include updates on the GMS key performance indicators within the work 
programme. 

 
 
16/26 BREXIT IMPLICATIONS FOR GREATER MANCHESTER AND 

INTERNATIONALISATION 
  
Sir Richard Leese, GMCA Portfolio Holder for Economic Strategy introduced a report 
which updated members on the work underway to understand the full implications of Brexit 
on Greater Manchester and the development of an appropriate policy response. 
 
He identified that there are some long and short term issues and specifically referenced 
the risk of reduction in EU funding particularly for research and investment.  He also raised 
the potential impact for recruitment, trade and investment for companies in GM and social 
policy issues including the risk of increased hate crime. 
 
GM Leaders have discussed the key priorities for minimising the impact of Brexit which will 
include a revised International Strategy to review the placement of EU directives and 
responsibilities and to ensure that GM continues to have market access both in Europe 
and worldwide.  The GMCA will also be looking at the future funding options for 
programmes which are currently funded by the EU to ensure that the benefits of these 
programmes remain evident for Greater Manchester. 
 
Questions and comments from the Scrutiny Pool included-  
 
Q. Members queried the cost of Brexit to GM figure of £350m, and how this was 

calculated? 
 
A. It was explained that this is a close approximation of funds in the current 6 year 

European Structural Funds Investment Plan programme (the exact amount is 
dependent on the Euro’s exchange rate).  This figure doesn’t include funds that GM 
could access from other European programmes for example Horizon 2020. Officers 
reminded the Pool that the financial modelling of Brexit’s impact will be dependent 
on the future negotiated relationship between Britain and the EU. 

 
Q. A member commented that not all regulations are imposed by because of EU 

directives, sometimes the UK has decided to enhance the European regulations.  
Therefore we need to lobby to ensure that the UK’s post Brexit regulatory regime 
does not disadvantage British companies.  

 
A. Officers reported that there are discussions ongoing with businesses regarding 

rules and regulations and current information indicated that the existing regulations 
will be lifted to the UK and then issues will be dealt with as and when required. 

 
Q. Members urged that GM also communicate the positive impact of Brexit and ensure 

that we do not miss out on the opportunities that are being offered.  A member 

Page 65



 

 

 4 

reported that there had been an increase in the FTSE 250 post Brexit, but this data 
was not included in the report. 

 
A. Officers urged members to be aware that financial statistics are constantly changing 

and that the reported data is lagged due to monthly reporting cycles.  They further 
reported that it will only be once Brexit actually happens, that the full impact will be 
understood. 

 
Q. Members expressed concern that trade negotiations should be undertaken 

concurrently with the wider Brexit negotiations and not deferred. 
 
Q. A member asked what GM programmes will not be able to secure their EU funding? 
 
A. It was reported that recent Government announcements stipulate that only those 

programmes which have signed contracts before the Autumn Statement will be 
guaranteed to receive their EU funding.  Therefore GM will be trying to progress 
both the Northern Powerhouse and Evergreen 2 programmes as rapidly as possible 
to begin the contract before this deadline. 

 
Q. Members urged that GM should give out an accurate and positive message 

regarding Brexit to reduce myths and rumour. Some sectors are reporting business 
growth in trade and employment opportunities. 

 
A. Officers re-iterated that some sectors were doing well post Brexit but reported that 

other sectors were not doing as well.  Currently there has been no change to trade 
as Britain is still a member of the EU, but there are anticipated changes to tariffs 
that will have a more adverse effect across UK trading. 

 
Q. A member commented that the Brexit Monitor was a useful document for elected 

members as asked whether it could be shared on a regular basis.  It was also 
suggested that this information should be more publically available. 

 
A. Officers agreed that the regular report which will be prepared on a monthly basis for 

the GMCA should also be shared with the Scrutiny Pool.  Officers offered to look at 
ways for wider publication of the Brexit Monitor. 

 
Q. Members asked officers if they could identify any current EU rules and regulations 

that when they are repatriated that could be devolved down to GM rather than to 
Whitehall. And, if any are identified to ensure that these are included in negotiations 
with Central Government.  One example, is that sometimes it is time consuming to 
ensure that qualifications gained outside the UK recognised here (and visa-versa), 
and this can restrict students when work opportunities, and could ultimately act as a 
drag on economic growth. 

 
A. It was reported that attracting highly skilled labour remains a priority for GM and 

ensuring we have access to the international labour market will form some of the 
discussions which are already underway regarding Brexit.  GM has a strong track 
record for successful lobbying within Government and will look to maximise all 
opportunities that Brexit could bring.  GM Leaders are committed to building 
confidence in GMs economic position now and in the future. 

Page 66



 

 

 5 

 
Q. Members expressed concern regarding the increased levels of hate crime since the 

Brexit announcement and the increased divisions amongst communities.  Members 
questioned whether there was any support from Government to help GM build 
community cohesion? 

 
A. At the meeting of the GMCA in July the Chief Constable spoke of the increased 

levels of hate crime.  Efforts to address community cohesion requires action from all 
GM Local Authorities and partner organisations as issues are more often on a local 
community level. 

 
Q. Members further urged that GM should keep publicising our strengths, economic 

growth, and future aspirations to continue to encourage investment from across the 
globe.  Some members reported a loss in confidence in the UK following the 
decision to leave the EU and this could have an impact on attracting students, 
professionals and businesses to GM. 

 
A. Members were assured that despite the period of uncertainty, that GM are 

committed to strengthening links across the UK for Greater Manchester now and in 
the future. 

 
Q. Concerns regarding the imposing of trading tariffs between the UK and other 

countries in Europe were raised.   
 
A. Officers reported that many businesses see the rules and regulations of importing 

and exporting a larger issue that the potential imposing of tariffs. 
 
  
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. To note the report. 
2. That the Scrutiny Pool receive the Brexit Monitor at each meeting for information. 

 
 
16/20 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2016/17 
 
8 July 2016   13 January 2017 
9 September 2016  10 February 2017   
14 October 2016  10 March 2017 
11 November 2016  7 April 2017 
9 December 2016   
 
All meetings will be held 1:00pm - 3:00pm at Manchester Town Hall unless otherwise 
advertised. 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 67



 

 

 1 

            8b 
 

JOINT GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY 14 OCTOBER 2016  
  AT MANCHESTER TOWN HALL 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
   
 
Bury MBC     Cllr Roy Walker 
        
 
Manchester CC    Cllr Ahmed Ali 
       Cllr Zahara Alijah 
       Cllr James Wilson 
 
Oldham MBC     Cllr Colin McLaren (Chair) 
            
Rochdale MBC    Cllr Neil Butterworth  
 
Salford CC     Cllr Jillian Collinson 

Cllr David Jolley 
      
Stockport MBC    Cllr Yvonne Guariento 
       Cllr John McGahan 
       Cllr Iain Roberts 
 
Tameside MBC    Cllr Gillian Peet 
       
 Trafford MBC    Cllr Barry Brotherton 
       Cllr Pam Dixon 
       Cllr Michael Young 
        
 
 
IN ATTENDANCE 

 
 GMCA     Andrew Lightfoot 
       Jacob Botham 
  
  

GMIST     Susan Ford 
       Nicola Ward 

Emma Stonier 
        

 

Page 68



 

 

 2 

16/27  APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies were received from Cllrs John O’Brien and Pam Stewart (Wigan), Cllrs Kevin 
McKeown and Debbie Newall (Bolton), Cllrs Garth Harkness and Cheryl Brock (Oldham), 
Cllrs Sara Rowbotham and Michael Holly (Rochdale) and Cllr John Bell (Tameside). 
 
 
16/28 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
The Chair welcomed Councillors Wilson and Alijah to Scrutiny Pool and thanked 
Councillors Strong and Stogia for their previous work on behalf of the GMCA/AGMA 
Scrutiny Pool. 
 
 
16/29 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in respect to any item on the agenda. 
 
 
16/30 MINUTES OF THE GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL MEETING HELD ON 9 

SEPTEMBER 2016  
 

The Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 9 September 2016 
were submitted for consideration. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
To approve the Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 9 
September 2016, with one minor amendment to note that Cllr Ahmed Ali sent apologies. 
 
 
16/31 GMCA/AGMA SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD PLAN 
 
Members received a report to review and amend the Work Programme for the GMCA and 
AGMA Scrutiny Pool for 2016/17. 
 
Members were asked to consider the addition of an item to the Work Programme for 
December, on the pre-consultation for the refresh of the Greater Manchester Spatial 
Strategy.  
 
A member asked that consideration be given to the impact of Brexit on the future of the 
Graphene Centre and other European Funded Projects for Science and Innovation and 
suggested that a report be brought to a future meeting. GMCA officers agreed to liaise with 
the University and report back at the November meeting of the Scrutiny Pool. GMCA 
officers requested that the member also provided clarification on the particular projects 
being referred to.  
 
A member asked whether there were detailed delivery plans to deliver on the draft Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework. GMCA Officers will schedule items relating to delivery 
plans for the GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool work programme post December 2016. 

Page 69



 

 

 3 

 
A member asked for clarity on the remit of the Scrutiny Pool in relating to Health and 
Social Care devolution. GMCA officers will provide a note to members which sets out the 
differences between the GM Joint Health Scrutiny Committee and the GMCA/AGMA 
Scrutiny Pool.  
 
A member noted that the date for publication of the draft Spatial Framework is 20 October 
and public consultation will not be completed by November. Officers informed members 
that the consultation will be live when the report comes to Scrutiny.  
 
A member asked whether feedback would be provided to the Scrutiny Pool following the 
Task and Finish Groups on Friday 14 October and Tuesday 18 October. Officers informed 
members that on the completion of Task and Finish Group work a report will be produced 
for members and in addition matters of specific interest will be reported back to Scrutiny 
Pool as appropriate.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. To note items for the 2016/17 Scrutiny Work Programme. 

 
2. To note the progress with Scrutiny’s Task and Finish work as set out in section 2. 

 
3. To add GMS re-fresh consultation report to the forward plan for December 2016. 
 
 
16/32 GMCA TRANSITION 
  
Andrew Lightfoot, GMCA Deputy Head of Paid Service gave a presentation which 
provided an overview of the transition programme, highlighting key workstreams 
(governance and scrutiny, finance and resourcing, legal and integrated staffing structures) 
and areas of progress to date.  
 
There has been significant work across all workstreams since the devolution agreements 
were signed. The election of a GM Mayor will take place on 4 May 2017 and the Mayor will 
take office on the 8 May. Secondary legislation is currently working its way through 
Parliament. From May 2017 the GMCA and the GM Mayor will assume a raft of new 
powers in areas such as policing, fire and planning. Work is currently underway to 
understand how current CA functions and associate bodies fit into the new arrangements.  
 
The CA will remain a lean organisation within existing budgets and will have a number of 
integrated corporate business functions. The current locations of functions of the GMCA 
are dispersed, post 2017 the CA will have support staff in one administrative headquarters.  
From 8 May 2017 the GMCA will have approximately 2500 staff, the majority being the 
2000 members of staff from the fire service, which includes 1600 uniform staff.  
 
The secondary legislation is made up of a number of bespoke orders including elections, 
overview and scrutiny, finance and a series of orders which cover specific powers for GM. 
Government has provided strong assurance that everything is on schedule and that there 
have been no slippages in the timings of legislation. The GM Mayor will be responsible for 
the fire budget and delegate other fire responsibilities to a Fire Committee. The GM Mayor 

Page 70



 

 

 4 

model is complex and binds the Mayor and GMCA. A revision of the GMCA constitution 
will take place to accommodate this.  
 
The net budget for the CA will be £1.5 billion in 2017/18. Variations in existing 
organisation’s in procurement, accounting and VAT will be addressed.  
 
At the GMCA meeting on 30 September it was agreed to lease 25,000 square foot at 
Churchgate House as the central location for staff of the CA.  
 
In the current form the CA only has 5 employees and currently terms and conditions for 
staff being integrated into the CA are being determined. Engagement is taking place with 
Trade Unions and staff within organisations in scope.   
 
Questions and comments from the Scrutiny Pool included-  
 
Q. Members queried the GMCA administration being cost neutral and asked whether 

Government costs will be devolved to GM? 
 
A. It was explained that some of the powers are new statutory and regulatory powers 

that have not been delivered before. There are some elements which are straight 
transfers and programme costs are generally devolved with this. The GMCA will 
look to contain initial pressures and cost to GM, and then in the medium term it is 
possible there will be scope for greater efficiencies. 

 
Q.  Members queried how the GM Mayor will be directly questioned (i.e. akin to full 

council) and be held to account? 
 
A. Members were informed that governance protocols are under development and that 

comments from Members as to what would work well would be welcome. 
 
Q. Members queried how staff morale is kept up during the transition period and 

whether there would be any potential redundancies arising from the integration and 
consolidation of staff?  

 
A. Members were informed that staff engagement has taken place through existing 

management structures, including face-to-face meetings. There were no anticipated 
compulsory redundancies but there would be some changes of locations and work 
remits. Transition meetings take place weekly with regular communications and 
FAQs circulated to HR leads within each organisation.  

 
Q.  Members queried whether there was the skill set in existence within GM for 

delivering on all the areas of devolution.  
 
A. Members were informed that in some areas services were already being integrated 

to work on specific workstreams and that the staffing resource is already sufficient 
for delivering devolution. The resource base in existence is being looked at and any 
potential gaps are being identified. It should also be noted that under devolution 
there is no TUPE obligations around central government departmental staff.  

 

Page 71



 

 

 5 

Q.  Members noted that devolution needed appropriate resources to enable the agenda 
to move forward. AGMA gives a positive start, but the future structure needs to give 
equality of opportunity for all. Ethical Procurement should also be something which 
is considered by the CA.  

 
A.  Members were informed that equality of opportunity and ethical procurement were 

aspirations for the CA and that there is no reason why policies for the CA will not be 
developed across these lines.  

 
Q. Members asked whether the opportunity to scrutinise decisions prior to them being 

finalised would be more evident in future scrutiny arrangements.  
 
A. Members were informed that Scrutiny Working Group were still in the process of 

producing a final report in relation to this and there would be opportunity to 
comment in due course.  

 
Q. Members queried the reasons why Police personnel were not being transferred to 

the CA? 
 
A.  It was explained that the legal arrangements of GMP are not comparable to the Fire 

Service, and the Chief Constable is the corporation sole. However, the Office of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner will transfer into the CA.  

 
Q.  Members asked whether the legislation prevented the GMCA being a larger CA, 

with the potential for other authorities to join.  
 
A. Members were informed that this could potentially be possible in future, but that it 

would require legislative changes.  
 
  
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. To note the key elements of the transition programme. 
 

2. That a further Transition Update be provided to members in January 2017. 
 
 
16/33 TROUBLED FAMILIES PROGRAMME  
 
Members received a report which provided an overview of the Troubled Families 
Programme in Greater Manchester. The report highlighted how since the programme 
began in 2011 it had made a positive impact in all areas across Greater Manchester.  
There are currently 27,200 families who have been engaged with the programme, each 
having their own assigned key worker, plan and series of tailored interventions. The 
national evaluation of phase 1 would be published imminently, however the GM evaluation 
already shows a number of positive outcomes.  Phase 2 (announced in 2014) offered a 
wider criteria set and alternative ways of measuring the programme’s success.   
 
The Troubled Families programme has also had an impact on wider public service 
provision, and the Government have recognised its role in progressing other areas of work 

Page 72



 

 

 6 

and opportunities for embedding the programme into front line delivery across 
organisations. 
 
The evaluation of phase 2 is currently underway and will review the impact the programme 
has had on 8,500 families in GM.  Our own evaluation will look to provide further data in 
support of this work and provide a fuller picture in anticipation of a re-modelled funding 
stream to support the programme in the future. 
 
Questions and comments from the Scrutiny Pool included-  
 
Q. Members queried whether the successes seen in Manchester City Council were 

reflective of all the other 9 boroughs. 
 
A. Members were informed that the overall feedback was that the programme had 

made a positive impact across GM, however there was a variance as the way the 
programme is delivered varies across the 10 boroughs.  

 
Q. Members asked whether there were robust exit strategies in place for families when 

leaving the programme. 
 
A. Members were informed that in all cases each family has a plan which includes an 

exit plan to identify other areas and sources of support. The re-referral rate is 
measured and currently this is not significant but will remain under observation. 

 
Q. A Member noted that the success of the programme suggests that it should be 

sustained and continued. 
 
A. Members were informed that a reinvestment model was being looked for the future 

in order that the programme can be continued past its current end date. The Life 
Chances fund is also being looked at as a potential funding stream. 

 
Q. Members queried whether the outcomes in phase 1 and phase 2 were being used 

to inform future programmes. Additionally a member asked whether there was any 
indication of levels of intervention required increasing as thresholds for services 
have risen.  

 
A. Members were updated that learning from the programme was regularly reflected 

upon and taken into consideration for other GM programmes. The intervention 
levels are difficult to ascertain as families are continually emerging, however 
noticeably some of the investment is shifting to early intervention to prevent families 
reaching the threshold for Troubled Families Programme. 

 
Q. Members noted that the employment rate had not significantly increased in the 

lifetime of the programme. 
 
A. It was noted that employment does remain a challenge, however within the 

Troubled Families Programme there are employment advisers seconded from the 
DWP who work intensively with families regarding getting back into work. 
Engagement and work with employers is also increasing.  

 

Page 73



 

 

 7 

Q. A member queried whether the centralisation of funding/resources would mean staff 
from the programme would also be centralised.   

 
A. Members were informed that there was no intention to change the delivery model 

but to identify a sustainable re-investment funding model. 
 
Resolved/- 
 

1. To note the progress made on the Troubled Families Programme by Local 
Authorities across Greater Manchester and how it has acted as both a catalyst and 
working example of how GM is reforming its public services. 
 

2. To endorse the proposals to potentially re-profile the drawdown of Troubled 
Families Monies in order that localities can invest more upfront in transformational 
activity that will make the programme a more sustainable model beyond the lifetime 
of the national programme. 
 

3. To receive a report back to Scrutiny Pool following the evaluation of phase 2 of the 
programme and to include statistics from each of the districts within this report.  

 
 
16/34 BREXIT MONITOR 
 
Members were provided with the Greater Manchester Brexit Monitor, which was shared 
with the GMCA on 30 September 2016, for information.  
 
Questions and comments from the Scrutiny Pool included-  
 
Q.  A member noted that the recent fall in the pound was not reflected in the report and 

asked whether this would have an impact on some of the forecasts included in the 
report.  

 
A. Members were informed that since the report had been submitted to the GMCA the 

situation had progressed. The report is produced on a monthly basis and therefore 
is only accurate at the time of writing due to the regular changes in the economy. 

 
Q.  Members stated that it would be useful to have the views of companies who 

invested in the Greater Manchester region regarding Brexit.  
 
A. Members were informed that there is an ongoing dialogue between investors and 

businesses and that if Members wished, a representative from the Manchester 
Growth Company could attend a meeting of the Scrutiny Pool or a session of a 
Task and Finish Group.  

 
Q. A member asked whether there was any further information from the Government 

regarding the future of EU Funding. 
 
A. Members were informed that there was a report being submitted to the GMCA at 

the end of the month, in relation to this issue.  
 

Page 74



 

 

 8 

Resolved/- 
 

1. To be provided with a further update at the next meeting.  
 
 

16/35 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2016 
 
11 November 2016  10 March 2017 
9 December 2016  7 April 2017 
13 January 2017   
10 February 2017     
 
All meetings will be held 1:00pm - 3:00pm at Manchester Town Hall unless otherwise 
advertised. 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 75


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	SummaryOFinterests

	2 Minutes
	3 Work Programme 2016/17
	CREOSCWP201617
	CREActionsList

	4 Rochdale Borough Council Homelessness Strategy 2016-2019
	OS November 2017 Append. 1 for Rochdale Borough Council Homelessness Strategy 2016-2019_v1
	O  S Nov 2017 Delivery Plan Append. 2 for Rochdale Borough Council Homelessness Strategy 2016-2019_v1
	EIA homeless

	6 Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 2 Performance Update
	7 GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool
	iTEM_08b_Scrutiny_Pool_Mins_14_October_2016, 08/11/2016 Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee


